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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin (Resigned on 4 January 2023)

Mr. Zhang Dongjie (Appointed on 19 January 2023)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah (Retired on 25 May 2023)
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Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
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Mr. Lam Chung Sui (Appointed on 15 June 2023)
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Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Audit Committee

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Li Yi (Retired on 25 May 2023)
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Nomination Committee

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman)

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Li Yi (Retired on 25 May 2023)

Auditors

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Hangzhou

BNP Paribas

China Bohai Bank

China Citic Bank

China Construction Bank
China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank
Chongqing Three Gorges Bank
Citibank, N.A.

CTBC Bank

DBS Bank

Deutsche Bank AG

Fubon Bank

Guangdong Huaxing Bank
Hang Seng Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial Bank

KBC Bank N.V.

MUFG Bank, Limited

OCBC Bank
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Corporate Information (continued)
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OCBC Wing Hang Bank

Ping An Bank

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Shin Kong Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of East Asia

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
United Overseas Bank

(The above are shown according to alphabetical order)

Investor and Media Relations Consultant

Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit 3312, 33rd Floor

China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBESE

of Directors, |
shareholders
TECS Holdings
pany”) and its

ogether, the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 December 2

FABREESEARERRREE
HESERERAR(TFLT)RYE
HEAS (KBIZ2EEH)BEE_2
ZEf+ZA=S+—-HLEEZES-

Dear investors,

Looking back to 2023, amid the increasingly unfavorable factors in the
international political and economic environment, the economic growth still
faced heavy downward pressure. Coupled with the cyclical and structural
contradictions of the domestic economy, the fundamentals for economic
recovery were still faltering. In face of such unprecedented challenges,
VSTECS strategically focused on the promotion of high-quality development
by solid efforts, and steadily forged ahead in a downturn market
environment, achieving increasing steadiness in its business foundation.

During the reporting period, VSTECS continuously demonstrated resilience.
The Group recorded a turnover of HK$73.891 billion, the net profit
attributable to shareholders, net of tax of HK$922 million, representing a
significant increase of 12%, and the return on equity (ROE) of 11.7%.
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In terms of business segments, the cloud computing segment, the enterprise
system segment and the consumer electronics segment all maintained a
steady development momentum in 2023. Among which, the turnover of
the cloud computing segment was HK$3.084 billion, the revenue of the
enterprise system segment was HK$40.414 billion; and the turnover of the
consumer electronics segment was HK$30.394 billion.

In terms of region, during the reporting period, the turnover from North Asia
amounted to HK$56.272 billion, accounting for 76% of the Group’s total
turnover, while the turnover from Southeast Asia amounted to HK$17.62
billion, accounting for 24% of the Group’s total turnover.

The steady development momentum in the performance results of the Group
was mainly attributed to: (1) the improvement of the credit control system,
strengthening of cash flow management and enhancement of operational
efficiency; (2) grasping of the development opportunities arising from the
construction of “Digital China”; (3) the product localization, especially the
accelerated deployment of the information, communication and technology
(“ICT”) industry; and (4) the continuous growth of the market demand in
Southeast Asia.

During the reporting period, the Group steadily advanced its businesses in
accordance to the established strategic direction, with the main progress as
follows:

Quantum
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Strengthened cooperation with leading cloud
vendors and computing power scheduling
became a new growth highlight

The rapid development of Al technology and industry has driven the
rapid rise in global demand for computing power and continuous
innovation in smart services and applications. During the reporting
period, the Group continued to maintain strategic cooperation with
leading cloud vendors and recorded a growth of 62%, 50% and
66% in the performance of Huawei Cloud, Alibaba Cloud and AWS.
Besides, the Group proactively expanded cooperation with more
leading vendors and entered into agreements with new public cloud
vendors including Tianyiyun and Cloud Inspur. The Group has also
won many awards such as “2023 Alibaba Cloud Partner Award”,
“Huawei Cloud Commercialization — Technology Leader Award”, and
“2023 Amazon Cloud Technology re:Invent Conference Partner”.

At the same time, the Group continued to consolidate the foundation
of Vplus cloud service platform to provide various solutions for the
cloud ecological market and diversify cloud application scenarios. The
Group also worked with strategic partners to explore new industry
development trend, so as to continuously inject new impetus for the
business expansion.

Cloud Star, a subsidiary of the Group, focused on the multi-cloud
management industry and is one of the first units to obtain the
certification of Trusted Cloud Service ¢ Multi-Cloud Management
Platform in China. Besides, as a leading company focusing on
diversified computing power operation and scheduling platform, Cloud
Star continued to upgrade the integrated computing power operation
and management platform, providing strong technical support for
3,500+ users and promoting the rapid expansion of business.
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During the reporting period, Cloud Star participated in the drafting of
the “Insight Report on the Development of Multi-cloud Management
Platform in China (2023)" (B % EF 12 ¥ & 3 & F 5 5 (2023)),
and the release of which contributed significant value to the healthy
development of China’s multi-cloud management platform and the
maturity of relevant standards and strategies. During the period, the
computing power scheduling business of Cloud Star increased by
40% year on year. With its outstanding performance in the operation
and management of computing power scheduling, Cloud Star was
listed in the “Research Report on the Development of Al Computing
Power in China (2022-2023)" (REI A TE e & h#ERA R WS
(2022-2023)) as a demonstration project, and obtained the qualification
of “Huawei Cloud Software Vendor”, leading the development of the
industry.

In the future, VSTECS will keep strategically investing in cloud
computing to promote the digital transformation of the Company and
the society.

Set a definite strategy of increasing strengths
for the development of consumer electronics,
which has promising application in education
segment

As consumer demands became more and more diversified and
personalised, new functions, forms and scenarios of consumer
electronics were emerging, which brought new opportunities for
the industry. Meanwhile, consumers’ concerns on health, safety,
environmental protection and other aspects have promoted the
innovation and upgrading of consumer electronics.

The Group continued to implement a diversified product strategy, and
carried out in-depth business layout in areas such as working from
home, games and entertainment, video and audio entertainment,
intelligent interconnection, smart wearable devices and smart
education. On the basis of continuous innovation of online and offline
business model, the Group’s strategy for the consumer electronic
business has changed from pursuing increase in scale to pursuing
increase in strengths. In terms of the upstream, we select influential
manufacturers; while in the downstream, we deepen the cooperation
with core agents, so as to meet the diversified demands of key
accounts.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

10

During the reporting period, the mobile phone business made
significant breakthroughs. We have become one of the most important
strategic partners of Apple in respect of the service for corporate
customers. The business performance of OPPO was growing rapidly,
up by more than 100%. In the meantime, following the development
trend of consumer electronics market, the Group has expanded to
intelligent education and introduced emerging products from TAL
Education Group and New Oriental Education & Technology Group
Inc., thereby providing a variety of choices to customers.

According to the latest forecast from Techinsights, revenue of the
global consumer electronic market will exceed US$1 trillion in 2024,
marking a major milestone for the industry. With the gradual recovery
of the industry, the consumer electronics segment is faced with a
promising future.

Strengthening the layout of computing power
market for Enterprise Systems, and continuously
deepening cooperation with Huawei based

In recent years, “independent, controllable, safe and reliable” has
become the key to the digital transformation of the national economy
and the development of the industrial chain. In terms of Enterprise
Systems, the Group has been actively supporting the layout of
localized alternative industries, and cooperated closely with the main
manufacturers of the information innovation industry such as Huawei,
Inspur, Sugon, Qi An Xin, so as to jointly build a new ecology of
the information innovation industry. During the reporting period, the
proportion of domestic brands in China has reached 60%.

Currently, computing power is becoming a new driving force for digital
economic growth. VSTECS is accelerating its layout in the computing
power field, with its business reaching across the entire industry
chain, from upstream to downstream, to create an artificial intelligence
industry ecosystem that includes infrastructure, cloud computing,
intelligent platforms, and solutions. It also actively advanced the
“East-to-West Computing” project by connecting artificial intelligence
computing centers across regions to form a computing power
network, so as to promote cross-regional allocation and efficient
utilization of computing power resources.

Excellent technical strength and high-quality service concept have
also brought long-term and stable partners to the Company. As an
important partner of Huawei, Lenovo, Dell, HP and other technology
manufacturers in the Asia-Pacific region, VSTECS has been
cooperating with them for over 15 years. In particular, the Group has
been cooperating with Huawei since 2008, and became its biggest
partner in overseas market.
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As the most important business of the Group, the corporate business
contributed to the digital transformation of enterprises and the
construction of digital China.

Grasping the rapid development momentum of
the Southeast Asian market to assist domestic
brands to expand overseas

The continuous and stable business growth in Southeast Asia was
due to the huge population and substantial development potential in
Southeast Asia. As the digital economy flourished, the demand for
digital transformation has continued to rise among countries in recent
years. VSTECS has been focusing on the Southeast Asia market for
years and has established branches in various countries to serve
customers in numerous industries such as government, finance,
education, etc., as well as a large number of individual consumers.

In Thailand, VSTECS actively expanded the number of cooperative
brands and has achieved cooperation with Schneider, ViewSonic and
other brands. Meanwhile, in order to strengthen its competitiveness,
the Group intends to set up branches in 11 provinces all over
Thailand. At present, the Group has set up branches in 7 provinces
to provide diversified services, including training centers, products
and solution show rooms and logistics services, for customers. In the
Philippines, VSTECS has recorded sound business performance and
realized rapid growth in cyber security. In particular, the rapid growth of
Palo Alto and Fortinet has offered crucial support to the development
of the Company. In Malaysia, VSTECS actively taped into the energy
sector, and has entered into contracts with Trina Solar and other
brands to explore opportunities in products like electric car charger
and PV inverter. Although the overall economy demonstrated a trend
of recession in Indonesia, VSTECS’s Huawei, Lenovo and Samsung
businesses still recorded outstanding performance.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE (B)

While maintaining cooperation with domestic brands such as Huawei
and Lenovo, the Group reached agreements with well-known brands,
such as D-link, Dahua Technology and Skyworth, to jointly explore the
Southeast Asian market during the reporting period.

With outstanding performance in the Southeast Asian region, VSTECS
(Thailand) was awarded the FY23 Best General Distributor Award
from NVIDIA, the Highest Growth Award for General Distributor of
Printer Hardware from Hewlett-Packard, and the FY23 Best General
Distributor Award from Cisco, along with multiple awards from Dell and
Lenovo. VSTECS (Singapore) was honored with awards such as the
FY23 Best General Distributor Award from Nvidia. VSTECS (Malaysia)
was honored at the Enterprise Award Ceremony of The Edge Malaysia
Centurion Club with the Highest Three-Year Net Profit Growth Award
and the Highest Three-Year Shareholder Return Award, and multiple
awards from Lenovo. VSTECS (Indonesia) received several awards
from Lenovo.

In the future, the Group will closely follow the wave of IT infrastructure
construction in Southeast Asia and continue to advance its business
layout in Southeast Asia, so as to explore new business growth points
for the Group.
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The promising future ahead as long as persist forward with efforts. T A8 RRAIE e 20244 - B #
In 2024, we will continue to uphold the core value of “pursuing BEZFABREHEIOZLEEE

excellence”, not clinging to the past, not fearing the new, and with THRE TERF E2ERCHE
the concerted efforts of all colleagues, we will face all challenges LDEFT UESHEHER DE—1)

with a more vigorous attitude. We will continuously enhance the core
competitiveness of the Group, thereby creating greater value for
shareholders and make more contributions to the society.
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REEFANEBE RUESAEESZM
i o

Li Jialin FERITHAAZ
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer EEM
Hong Kong, 21 March 2024 BER —EZWHFEF=A=+—H
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION
RERAREKBLR

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base.
The Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and
Laos. The three main businesses are Enterprise Systems, Consumer
Electronics and Cloud Computing. The Enterprise Systems segment
designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure for companies, while the
Consumer Electronics segment and the Cloud Computing Segment provide
various finished IT products and cloud computing solutions and services
to customers. Leading IT vendors such as Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP,
Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft,
Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of over
50,000 channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have
established, through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging
from individuals, small and medium enterprises to large corporations and
government entities who have been serviced by our regional resellers over
the past 30 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 50,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHEEBAWR S

Business Review

The Group has recorded a considerable revenue this year. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$73,891,296,000
(2022: HK$77,323,994,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$3,496,516,000 (2022: HK$3,377,924,000).
Operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to HK$1,435,147,000 (2022: HK$1,328,268,000). Net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$922,033,000 (2022:
HK$823,071,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2023 was HK65.62 cents (2022: HK58.15 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the enterprise systems segment decrease
by 2.3% to HK$40,413,612,000, contributing 54.7% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the consumer electronics segment decrease
by 8.1% to HK$30,393,688,000, contributing 41.1% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the cloud computing segment increased by 6.7% to
HK$3,083,996,000, contributing 4.2% of the total Group revenue.

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed steadily in
the year ended 31 December 2023. During the year, revenue generated in
North Asia slightly decreased by 6% to HK$56,271,520,000, contributing
approximately 76% of the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East
Asia increased by 2% to HK$17,619,776,000, contributing approximately
24% of the total Group revenue. The Group has continuously aimed to
widen our product range in order to provide more choices to our customers.
Our extensive and diversified product lines now include Huawei, Alibaba,
Tencent, HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer,
Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which
the Group operates as well as others that are common to most if not all
other businesses. The directors have established a policy to ensure that
significant risks which may adversely affect the Group’s performance and
ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may present
positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored, and managed on
a continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 3 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products and network will enable us to continue
to drive growth for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to
increase market shares as well as the range of products and services
offered. This will enable the Group to continue to focus on growth in all
business segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand our
business into consumer electronics and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank balances were
approximately HK$3,325,140,000 (2022: approximately HK$3,828,930,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$8,103,976,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,422,683,000).
The net debt to total asset ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and
bank balances divided by total assets, was 0.14 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: 0.13).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded total current assets
of approximately HK$32,885,088,000 (2022: approximately
HK$32,641,709,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$26,556,103,000 (2022: approximately HK$25,505,265,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the total
current liabilities, was approximately 1.24 times as at 31 December 2023
(2022: approximately 1.28 times).

The Group recorded increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$7,657,778,000 as at 31 December 2022 to approximately
HK$8,222,836,000 as at 31 December 2023.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank balances of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand
baht and Indonesian rupiah.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had certain financial assets pledged for
financial liabilities, deposits secured for issuance for and a building pledged
against secured mortgage loan as set out in notes 3.4, 13 and 21 to the
financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 4,322 (2022: 4,487) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to approximately HK$1,096,787,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,078,395,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars
to its staff.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
EERAOFIRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 62, is one of the founders of
the Group and is the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr.
Li is also the director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall management and strategic positioning of the
Group. Mr. Li graduated from Tsinghua University
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and a
Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986.

Mr. Li is the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 52, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the
director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall
financial management of the Group. Mr. Ong holds
a Bachelor Degree in Economics from University
College London and a Master Degree in Analysis,
Design & Management of Information Systems
from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

h

Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 35, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012. Mr. Li is responsible for
investments and fund management of the Group.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from
the University of Chicago in the United States of
America. Mr. Li is also a CFA charterholder. He is
a member of the CFA Institute and the Hong Kong
Society of Financial Analysts. Mr. Li is the son of Mr.
Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERAFIMEERE (&)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 54, is an Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of
America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience
in personal computer and semiconductor industry.
Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice President —
Product Management of VSTECS (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served as the
distribution director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of the
distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. GU Sanjun, aged 53, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in June 2021.
Mr. Gu has extensive experience in the field of
Information Technology and has accumulated 15
years experience of operation in the Group. Mr. Gu
had served as the general manager of the software
department of the Group from 2000 to 2008 and
subsequently rejoined the Group in 2016. Mr. Gu
currently is the chief executive officer in the Greater
China Region of the Group and is responsible for the
overall business development and achieving the Company’s strategic goal
in the PRC. Prior to that, Mr. Gu had served in different large enterprises in
China such as Guangzhou Suntek Technology ( & /M1 A7) , Ingram
Micro International (China) (228 EIR (R ) ) and Founder Group (1t X5
IE£E) . Mr. Gu graduated from the Beijing University of Technology in the
PRC with a Bachelor Degree in Applied Mathematics.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Dongjie, aged 50, appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in January
2023. Mr. Zhang graduated from Xiamen University
in the PRC with a Master degree in Economics in
2005. Mr. Zhang is currently the deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain
Management Ltd. (& 3l T 16 T5 i 4% JE 88 iR {n

[R A A)) (“Shenzhen Eternal Asia”), a joint stock
company established in the PRC with limited liability
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Shenzhen Eternal Asia is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a non-executive
director of Trigiant Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 69, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 25 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is also an independent non-executive director of
Transtech Optelecom Science Holdings Limited and
Qianhai Health Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and members of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 59, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in finance, auditing
and accounting. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit Committee and
members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 68, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.

From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National Economic System
Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research Office, later he
was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to 1994, he acted
as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-Tech Industry
Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed to many
important positions, such as director, deputy general manager of Hong Kong
Jing-Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager and chairman
of board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited, board director
and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company Limited, and
the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice president of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present, Mr. Wang acts
as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust and Investment
Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing International Trust
Co. Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. LAM Chung Sui, aged 37, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in June 2023
and is responsible for secretarial matters of the
Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accounts. He joined the Group in
2022,
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR - MERELIHS

The Group is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report” or the “Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2023. The ESG Report is to highlight the Group’s approaches and strategies
in pursuit of sustainable development during the period from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”). The
Group would also like to take this opportunity to thank all stakeholders who
have contributed to this sustainability journey with us and present the ESG
performance to all our stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules from HKEX.

The Report covers the overall performance, policies and practices of the
Group’s business and operation regarding its environmental and social
responsibilities. This Report has followed the Reporting Principles as set
out in the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide, including Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency. To align with the best interest of our readers, we
conducted a materiality assessment through the help with our stakeholders
to select the key ESG issues concerning with our business operation,
which are covered in the later parts. This ESG Report mainly focuses on
the aspects that have identified as material and relevant to the Group’s
businesses and its key stakeholders.

We discussed the social KPIs associated with the performance of the
Group in employment, labour standards, supply chain management, training
activities, community investment, etc. We referenced the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules and the standards of
Greenhouse Gas Protocol, this makes our ESG performance measurable,
in regards to the carbon emission, resource usage, waste generation and
so on. We computed the environmental key performance indicators (‘KPIs”)
based on our emission and waste produced in our operation process and
also the daily activities in the office.

In addition, this report aims to provide our reader a comprehensive and
objective view of the ESG management efficacy of the Group, therefore,
we are committed to revealing statistics and numbers to the best of our
knowledge.

For convenience, an index is available in the last chapter of the Report for
the readers, regarding the locations of KPIs within the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report mainly focuses on the areas that have been identified as
material and relevant to the Group’s business and its key stakeholders for
the Reporting Period. It covers our three main operation segments, namely
The Enterprise Systems segment, The Consumer Electronics segment and
The Cloud Computing segment.

ESG GOVERNANCE

A strong ESG governance structure sets the foundation for a company to
become a socially and environmentally responsible company. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment to identify the ESG
risks and opportunities in the Group. The Board has also engaged in
determining the major ESG strategies and planning of the ESG related goals.
The Group consistently incorporated consideration of environmental, social
and governance into our operation, aligning with our dedication of creating
sustainable value for stakeholders and uphold our role as a responsible
corporate citizen. We are committed to making a positive impact on our
environment and community, while adhering to our philosophy of sustainable
development rooted in our core business practices, our relationships
with stakeholders, and our environmental performances. The sections in
our Report will disclose our corresponding management approaches in
environmental and social aspects.

The Board is made up of a range of diverse members from various
backgrounds. In regards to age demographic, though members between
51 to 60 years old accounted 45% of the board, we have 22% of members
who are under the age of 50 years old.

Age Distribution of Board

EEEFRIM

41 or below
A1RTLLT
11%

61 or above
61RRTLLE
33%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

BOARD’S ESG RESPONSIBILITY

The Board recognizes the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategies and reporting and for evaluating and determining the Group’s
ESG related risks. Moreover, the Board is responsible to develop the
environmental goals to motivate the Group to achieve its goals and
have a better performance in the future. For the purpose of continuous
improvement, ESG performance is regularly measured, reviewed and
reported to the management.

The Board is collectively responsible for the overall development and review
of the ESG matters. Whenever ESG issues arise, they will be put to the
Board for further discussion. We will also seek professional advice from third
party whenever necessary.

EEEMESCGEE

EEEAENEASEMESGRE R E N
RetE HEEANSBHESGH R E B 28
A EEZENAERERERE
NEBAEBERRKRREF RiFAEICE
ESGRER G E R 1L TEHMEREER
HAREEDLECE -

EFCEREEESGEENERRER IR
Ao EESGEELERE B LREETSF
E— TR -BMATEREFTERSRKE=
TEXER-

Monitor and Manage ESG Matters

ERREEESGEH

Board €

ESG Matters

Manager EE& Experts B3

To achieve sustainable development of the Company, the Board will
continuously communicate with stakeholders and effectively balance their
expectations and needs as the Board strives to maximize the long-term
benefits of all stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the stakeholders’ opinions and taking them seriously as
the direction of our group. We believe the Group’s long-term growth and
success is inseparable from understanding stakeholders’ views and opinions,
thus we uphold an open and honest relationship with our stakeholders.

As Asia’s leading distributor of Information, Communication and
Technology (“ICT”) products, we continuously communicate with all our
stakeholders, aiming to maximize their long-term benefits and effectively
balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to achieve
sustainable development of the Company. Our key stakeholders include the
shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers etc.

We collect opinions from different stakeholders through multiple channels,
we organize regular meetings with all stakeholders and tailored various
communication channels for each stakeholder, for example, we conduct site
visits to our suppliers, offer service hotlines for our clients for enquiries and
hold press conferences for our investors. We gathered valuable opinions and
responses from our stakeholders through these different channels.

Stakeholder Group Concerns and expectations
M EREERR BEEREE
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Communication channel
BBRE

Government departments and

regulatory authorities
BB R EEE AR BPEEER
Shareholders and investors
Return on Investment

RERRIREE EBERERATRAIE D8

Employees Welfare, career, training healthy
working environment

BT B EII R T ERE

Suppliers and business Integrity, fair trade

partners
HERMREBSERHF WMERRFRS
Customers Product and services quality and safety;
Customer relation and privacy protection
®F EmkRBHEENT L TPBERKR

ThES R &

Comply with the laws and regulations

Business development and prospect,

Review and update the government and
regulatory body’s policies
EH R T BBUT M EEHRBER

Investors meetings, annual general meeting,
press conference, social media interaction

REEGE RRBFRG FEBHEX
HREEEH

Staff meeting, regular social gathering,
whistle blowing policy
BIgs THHRES RBRBK

Regular meetings with suppliers, site visit

EHEHMERRTERNEBER

Regular meetings with clients, client’s direct
feedback, customer services hotline
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Through the communication with our employees, the Group realised that
our employees focus on the welfare, career path, training provided to them
and a healthy working environment. The Group take this into consideration
and provided a healthy working environment, a competitive remuneration
package and also the discretionary bonus by reference to individual and
Group’s performance, in response to their opinions. Different from our
employees, our management team focuses on the performance of the
company, and whether the company’s goals and strategies have been
achieved. This is more or less similar to the Group concerns and the Group
will make sure that the goals and strategies set by the management are duly
communicated to all the staff which can enhance the achievement of the
goals.

Our customers are concerned about the product and services quality and
safety as well as the customer relationships and privacy protection. In
response, we provide a high quality of product and service, in addition, we
have a special team to provide after-sales services to them.

The Group also pays attention to our relationship with suppliers. Suppliers
of different brands are handled by a designated project management team
to ensure a close relationship with each supplier of integrity and fair dealing.
Our investors concerned about the business development and prospect
of the Group and also the returns on investment, we clearly understand
their concerns. In response to the concerns of our investors, our Group
management will have regular meetings with them and we will also engage
with professional parties to explore potential investors in the benefit to the
Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Shareholders and investors are deeply vested in the business’s development
and prospects, as well as the return on investment (ROI) they can anticipate.
Effective communication channels for addressing these concerns include
investor meetings, annual general meetings, press conferences. Furthermore,
we leverage social media interaction to connect with shareholders and
investors on a more immediate and interactive level, fostering a sense of
community and providing timely updates on key developments.

To make sure the group has complied with all the laws and regulations,
we will review and update the government and regulatory body’s policies
regularly to respond to the Government — one of our stakeholders’ concerns,
that is to comply with the laws and regulations. We think this is beneficial to
the Group and we are happy to do so.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the views of our key
stakeholders include the shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, etc.
on the Group’s material issues and sustainability strategy. After a series of
managerial-level meetings and the Board’s discussion, a several number of
issues have been identified, the Group has assessed those important ESG
topics and produced the following materiality matrix to clarify the ESG issues
that concern our business most.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Low Impact to External Stakeholders High

Details of the numbers can be found in the table below:

/ SR
Z-3

HIINBEFNENR

15

Materiality - Environmental

EEMH-RE
7 Risks brought by
climate issues
RIRREE R R
[ J
5 Packaging material

consumption 4 Water
BEMELEFE consumption

° ° KEFE

6 Significant impacts ®

on the environment
HREBENFTEFE

{
2 Sewage and waste

&K 2 Y]
Low Impact to Internal Stakeholders
& HAIMRFDENZE

Environmental

o
1 Air pollutant and
carbon emission

BER R T HERL
3 Energy and
electricity
consumption
BERKRENEFE
]
High
=)

BFrFBLATX:

BB
1 Air pollutant and carbon emission
8 SR R i BERR
2 Sewage and waste
[EEIK K2 EE W)
3 Energy and electricity consumption
BEIR B B
4 Water consumption
KB FE
5 Packaging material consumption
BEMENERE
6 Significant impacts on the environment, such as noise, odour, pollution, ecological imbalance, species extinction and
resource depletion
HIRENETEZE MRS BR 5 ERXE MEREKRERLES
7 Risks brought by climate issues, such as physical risk (extreme weather events and rise of temperature) and transition

risk (policy, legal and market risks)

RIRFEER RO ER YR ER (RiHRRENRRRETT) FBEERR (B R RTHER)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Materiality — Social
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Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: HFTFBEL2RTX:
Social
e
8 Compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
HU R E BEEEA TERE KRB TERE G RERUAREMF & REF
9 Employees’ health and workplace safety
EEMREMIIESHEZE
10 Improvement in job skills and development opportunities
RATERERERES
11 Stability and sustainability of supply chain
HEgnRE N KA AN
12 Product market demand and innovation*
Emr 5 E K el F
13 Contribution to society, such as donation, care, conservation and education
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Materiality - Governance

EEMH-ER
16 Product quality
and safety
- EREERE2
R [
£ I ,
15 Supply chain 18 Intellectual ®
n environmental risk property rights ®
g management SRS A RE 19 Behaviours
2 s MR IR R E IR 15
S °
ol o
n AT 17 Customer relation
SR and protection ] . .
S A RIRE 14 Preventing child
= = labour and forced
uo.l = labour
o T E T RIGHIAT
o
@®©
Q
£
3w
—
Low Impact to Internal Stakeholders High
& HRIEFDENZE =

Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: FFHEB2RTX:
Governance
&R
14 Preventing child labour and forced labour

TEPE T Roah| 4T
15 Supply chain environmental risk management

HE S H IR R IR E 18
16 Product quality and safety*

EmEERer”
17 Customer relation and protection

BEFRMERRE
18 Intellectual property rights*

AR E R
19 Behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, and the mechanisms and training activities to

prevent such behaviours*

FREE - BhER - BRGF  REBRZHIT AU RIAN L EIT ARSI KIS B
* The most important topics to the Group * REBEREENZER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

As illustrated above, the ESG topics of highest priority to the Group are
Product Quality and Safety, Product Market Demand and Innovation,
Intellectual Property Rights and Corruption Behaviour with the Prevention
Policy.

Because of our business nature, our internal and external stakeholders are
focused more on the social and governance issues than the environmental
issues that are less related to our business nature. For the social sector,
our stakeholders focus on the Product Market Demand and Innovation, as
an IT trading company, we also care about the innovation and demand of
our products. We have cooperated with lots of well-established and well-
known suppliers that provide us with high quality products, and believe that
the demand for IT products will be stable. In addition, we keep discussing
with our suppliers about the new idea of the IT products such that they can
provide trendy products to our customers.

For the governance sector, our stakeholders focused on the Product’s
Quality and Safety and the Intellectual Property Rights. These factors are
very important to the operation of the Group. The Group has policy and
regulation on monitoring the safety of the product. Once we have discovered
the safety and quality problems, we will inform the suppliers immediately and
find solutions to solve the problems by returning the products or renewing
the products. We also take the Intellectual Property Rights issue as a very
serious matter, as innovation and ideas are key inputs of IT products. We
have strict regulations on supervision of the product that is not yet on the
market.

Apart from the product-related sector, Corruption Prevention is also a topic
that our stakeholders think is an important issue and the Board shares the
same view as our stakeholders. In view of this, the Group has a stringent
Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our business partners
to follow strictly. Moreover, all employees are also required to attend anti-
corruption training every year to remind them of the importance of integrity.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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ESG STRATEGIES

As the Group is a leading distributor of ICT products, channel development
and integrated service providers of technology solutions in the Asia Pacific
region. Compared with the manufacturing-based business, we are mainly
engaged in the development of technologies with fewer environmental
concerns. But we still hope to participate in environmental protection
activities and also fulfil corporate social responsibility. We will put more
energy into social development, including employment and development
policies, supplier selection, safety and health issues, product responsibility,
etc.

We understand the importance of its impact on sustainable environmental
development. We will continue to encourage and ensure the efficient use
of resources in our operation process to save energy and reduce GHG
emission as much as possible. We will keep putting effort in protecting the
environment and we are planning to work with our suppliers on handling the
electronic wastes in a more proper way. Based on the characteristics of the
industry, we have established a three-step environmental goal. At the same
time, we closely monitor environmental risks to ensure that relevant risks are
under control.

Environmental Targets
RIEER

Target 2: Gradually establish a
monitoring and management system
for Scope 3 GHG emissions.

Eﬁ_
MEVESRIE

ZHEY EEIR
SR o

Target 1: Achieve a gradual
reduction in GHG Emissions (Per
Employee) of Scope 2 year by year.

BR—: ZEETRLEE2NES
ETRERBHR

o

Target 1: Achieve a gradual reduction in GHG Emissions year by year. This
is a quantitative target. We will implement the relevant target in various
departments and branch structures of the organization, especially in the use
of electricity, to ensure the achievement of the target.

34 VSTECS Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

RE B8R ERKE
i A 7 S (B 8 5 25 K 0 B 0 4 ST AR R

moREMBERENDHBREMB R R
MEGEERBEER HRENRENET
BMEZRFERMFAE  HRENPER -
BERMODAFELERREE BITEEL
SEET-HKMRAEZHENRELGERE
EEAENEREBRE HEDEE 2@
REEE ERETS-

BEMTRABSIBERRERATERRE
Z-HMBEEZDRERNEEBRETA

MAMAER RAURMEAOER R EE
REFM-BHMBEES NRERE A

BEpEEAE EEERERET RN

REFEES AMEHE=AERA B
Ao BT ERESEAR BREEA
b AT g o

Target 3: Based on the company’s
services, gradually promote

environmental upgrading of industries.

BR=: Y EARIRE
REAR -

BB EHE

EREH

Ceeteennecnnesinesinces @

B EZFELHIBERBHER - LR
—HEER -RMASEAZENSHBFIMD
XHEBETEZERABES BHRERE @
NERERBR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Target 2: Continuously improving the monitoring and management
of environmental issues. The ongoing enhancement of environmental
monitoring and management involves a dynamic process aimed at bolstering
our ability to track, assess, and address various environmental concerns.
This involves deploying advanced technologies, refining data collection
methods, and strengthening regulatory frameworks. We have noticed that
GHG Emissions of Scope 3 which have gradually received attention from
regulatory agencies and industry organizations. GHG Emissions of Scope
3 are the indirect emissions outside of scope 2 emissions that occur in the
value chain of the company. We will closely monitor policy changes and
guard against the risks they may pose to the company. We will continue
to strengthen the establishment of a monitoring system for Scope 3
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. At the same time, we will continuously
strengthen our focus on and management of more environmental issues,
such as the environmental footprint of hardware infrastructure.

Target 3: Based on the company’s services, gradually promote
environmental upgrading of industries. As a listed company, we are
well aware of the importance of social responsibility. As an information,
communications and technology (“ICT”) services company, we are deeply
aware of our product and services play an important role in promoting
environmental development. Base on Target 1 and Target 2, we will take
actions and provide solutions contributes to the environmental upgrading of
upstream and downstream companies.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous community
atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote long-term
corporate benefit. By focusing on areas such as employment and labour
practices, operational procedures, and social engagement, we aim to
establish a mutually beneficial connection with both our internal and external
stakeholders.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product Quality and Safety

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the Group
carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. Before introducing
products to customers, the Group will examine the specifications of each
product supplied by the vendors to ensure that they meet the necessary
standards and meet the expectations of the customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Being a comprehensive distributor, our aim is not only to offer superior
quality products to our customers but also to provide an array of value-
added services to both our suppliers and customers. We have a product
return and exchange policy for our customers, and if any quality-related
complaints arise, we report and provide feedback to our suppliers for their
review and improvement.

Simultaneously, the company actively participates in various industry
summits, keeping abreast of industry trends to continually provide customers
with high-quality products and services. In 2023, the company attended
conferences such as the 2023 Hangzhou Yungi Conference, the 2023
SketchUp X Partners China 3D Design Summit, and the Autodesk Converge
2023 Summit. Concurrently, the company is actively deploying services in
cloud computing, digital operations, and other areas to assist businesses in
fostering digital awareness, mastering digital transformation strategies and
methods, and enhancing the digitization level of the manufacturing industry.
The company’s products and services have also received awards in multiple
fields.

During the Reporting Year, no products were subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons, nor any complaints received.

Privacy and Data Protection

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy of every
customer. All the employees are obligated to maintain high confidentiality
of any information related with their work, such as client information and
supplier information.

We strictly limit the use of information we collect and ensure it is used
responsibly. We require every employee to follow guidance related to
privacy and data protection. Employees who have access to or control
such information have full responsibility to protect the information from
unauthorized disclosure or use.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of intellectual
property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to sell its products,
we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and conditions on the sale of
the products and a distributor agreement will be signed by both parties to
ensure that the Group has the right and authority to sell the products on
behalf of the suppliers.

In addition, the Group pays close attention to infringements in the market
to prevent any infringements (e.g., counterfeiting of trademarks), this is to
prevent and protect the Groups and the others from getting into troubles.
Moreover, there is a logo guideline to ensure adherence to proper usage.
The correct use of logo under various circumstance is approved.

Customer Opinion and Complaints

The Group values customer feedback as it guides our continuous
improvement. Additionally, we take customer complaints very seriously and
thoroughly investigate and report them to our management team. Our goal
is to provide customers with a great experience.

During the Reporting Year, no complaints were received and we complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact to us,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and noted
no incident of information leakage reported during the Reporting Period.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are one of the key stakeholders to the Group who cannot be
independent of production materials. Hence, we value our relationship with
suppliers and are actively developing a sustainable supply chain that meets
the Group’s ethical, environmental, health and safety standards.

As a leading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms a
very essential part in the Group. The Group implements an efficient supply
chain management system that strengthen the role of different parties
between suppliers, distributors and retailers and to ensure high quality of
services and products are delivered to our customers. In order to increase
the efficiency and effectiveness of our supply chain management, different
brand of suppliers is managed by our designated project managers so
that they can take full care of each supplier to provide smooth delivery of
products to different parties.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

We have over 300 product suppliers from all around the world, including
China, Thailand, Singapore etc. Below are the details of the supplier’s
distribution:

No. of suppliers

HEMHE

BHMEA KRB R ZMAB00% K E m &
BRREPE FE MRS T XEHIH
i

Hong Kong SAR, China
HEEE
4%

Indonesia E1fE
9%

Singapore N
11%

Thailand % El
13%

The Group has established a well-functioning supply chain management
system that enhances the collaboration among suppliers, distributors,
and retailers, ensuring that our customers receive top-notch products
and services. To optimize the efficiency and efficacy of our supply chain
management, each brand of supplier is assigned to a designated project
manager who is responsible for overseeing their performance and ensuring
seamless delivery of products to all parties involved. Additionally, our team
regularly meets with our suppliers to ensure smooth operations.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as Huawei, HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to
name a few. The majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and
regulations in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard. The
Group emphasises the relationship and communications with the suppliers
to promote sustainable development.

We also have a comprehensive process in selecting and engaging suppliers
with integrity and fair treatment. We always take into consideration such
as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality, recall policy, market
conditions and demands, etc. The Group communicates with the suppliers
and distributors regularly to maintain a good relationship with them and
review and monitor the performance of the suppliers and provide feedback
to them from time to time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Besides the above selection criteria mentioned, the ethical performance and
their participation in corporate social responsibility are also our concerns.
We have to keep monitoring their performance and corporate social
responsibility so that to make sure that our suppliers are up to their social
standards. We hope to cooperate with the suppliers who have the same
vision as us.

The Group is highly committed to promoting environmentally-friendly
procurement practices. As suppliers play a vital role in our business by
directly affecting the quality, cost, and delivery time of our products and
services, we prioritize their selection and performance evaluation processes.

Traditionally, supplier selection processes have focused on quality, cost,
and lead time. However, with the growing importance of environmental
concerns, our group has included environmental criteria in our supplier
selection process. We expect our suppliers to not only comply with
environmental regulations but also engage in efficient, green product design
and sustainable development.

Therefore, our Group conducts extensive background checks and
performance evaluations in our green supplier selection process, overseen
by our designated product management team. They engage with suppliers
on their environmental policies and compare them with other suppliers. Most
of our suppliers are reputable international brands, and we continuously
monitor their green procurement performance and policies. Furthermore,
some of our board members sit on the Environmental, Social and
Governance committee of our major suppliers to monitor and share views
on different areas.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Our Board is responsible for the overall risk management of our group and
different area of risks management are delegated to designated senior
management team. Our product management team is responsible for the
group supply risk management. We manage procurement risks from four
aspects.
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Measures for Management Risks in Supply Chain
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Identify internal and external risks
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Monitor risks closely
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Identify internal and external risks. Understanding the sources and
impact of procurement risks, conducting risk assessment and analysis,
and determining potential consequences.

Develop a supply chain risk management plan for handling risks. We
have developed a supply chain risk management plan which help
organizations proactively identify and mitigate potential risks, ensure
continuity of operations, and protect against unforeseen disruptions
to the supply chain, including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
mitigation, risk monitoring, risk response and so on.

Monitor risks closely. We continuously monitor the supply chain
for potential risks and evaluate the effectiveness of risk mitigation
strategies.

Perform regular reviews. By conducting regular reviews of the supply
chain management process, we can identify areas for improvement
and ensure that they are delivering value to customers while managing
risks effectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable. The
Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There are anti-corruption and
anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the employees. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

The Policies taken by the Compliance Department of the Group on anti-
corruption including management orientation, process management,
documents and other related management as follows:
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Anti-corruption Policy Guidelines
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Clear Management Structure for Compliance
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The code of conduct and related policies and procedure
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Compliance Executive Independent Control for Compliance Management
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Risk Estimate and Internal Audit Procedure
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Confidential Reporting and Internal Investigation
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

The Group has stringent Code of Conduct that requires the employees and
our business partners to follow strictly. There are two aspects in the Group’s
Code of Conduct. One is related to employees. All newly joined employees
are required to sign the Employee’s Handbook and an Integrity Declaration
and attend anti-corruption training. The company has established a Conflict
of Interest Policy to ensure transparency and integrity in all business
dealings. This policy clearly outlines the information that needs to be
disclosed and specifies the actions that are prohibited.

All employees are also required to attend anti-corruption training every year
to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for our business partners,
such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to anticorruption are
included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to ensure both parties
are fully aware of their responsibilities.
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Anti-corruption Training Content

RESFIAR

n Law and Regulations ik R i&#

Local Law and Regulations &t 3AE K &R
International Laws and Regulations BIFEE K 5ER

E Enforcement Standards under Compliance & #i 1T

Compliance Requirements with Customers: Anti-Bribery Clause & F &R EK | REFIEIHRR
Compliance Requirements in Procurement: Anti-Bribery Clause ISR ER © REGERIER

n Whistle-blowing 4§

Whistle-blowing Channels 2222 &
Confidentiality of whistle-blowing Z2$R{R 2% 1%

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels for
employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action. All the
information collected and received will be kept confidential and the Group’s
internal audit department will conduct internal investigation and report to
senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Group, its directors and employees were
not involved in any legal cases concerning corrupt practices. We were not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
our operating areas, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong, that had a notable impact on the Group relating to
health and safety in relation to products and services provided.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards talents as one of its core competencies and has
optimized the use of human resources through a dedicated recruitment
process and appraisal system.

The Group believes that employees are the most important and valuable
assets contributing to the key to success and sustainable growth of the
Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies with all the relevant
labour laws and regulations under respective jurisdictions. The Group treats
all the employees equally that their employment, remuneration, promotion
or dismissal will not be affected by their social identities such as race,
nationality, gender, religion, age and marital status.

The Group offers a range of attractive salaries, promotion opportunities and
benefits packages to attract and retain outstanding employees. Salaries
are reviewed annually and adjusted based on individual performance and
market conditions. In addition, employees receive discretionary bonuses,
share options and company shares in recognition of their contribution to the
Group, and are evaluated based on the Group’s overall performance and
individual performance. The Group also provides employees with medical
insurance, paid maternity leave, retirement plans and other benefits.

At the end of Reporting Period, our Group hired a total of 4,322 employees,
of which are almost full-time employees (4,275). Across our business
portfolio, females accounted for 45% of the total labour. We are glad
to see that the gender gap in the Group is small and we will keep this
phenomenon. Regarding age, most of our employees concentrate in 31-
40, accounting for around 42% of the total number. This is a positive for the
Group as the employees at this age are often experienced and productive.
For staff retainment, we would develop a strategy accordingly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Gender Distribution of Employee
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the period, we saw an 29% of our employees leaving the Group.
Most of them are aged 30 or below and the turnover rate for the age group
is 45%. This is significant and has aroused the attention of management.
The Group then came up with policies and plans to retain the talents, for
example, to provide them more training so as to develop their potential
and let them feel being valued by the company. We treasure all employees
of our company and hope to give them a good working atmosphere and
experience.

Turnover Rate - Age

MEER-Fi&
45% 45%
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25% 22%
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10%
B
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30 or below 31-40 41-50 51-60
30KALLT  31-407% 41-507% 51-607%,

Our Group has a balanced figure in terms of gender, which is a sign of
gender equality, and the turnover rate by gender is also fairly balanced, with
58% of departing employees being male and 42% female. The turnover
rate was 31% for men and 26% for women. Below are the other Turnover
Statistics presenting in Graph (Turnover Rate Calculation: Employees of
certain category leaving/Total number of employees in the category):
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Turnover Rate - Location
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During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-compliance 7 [E B8 & & A - AN 55 @ 7 & T (7] 2 X 18 &
with the relevant employment laws and regulations. BERREHRNEBENR -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strongly condemns any form of child and forced labour, as
it violates international labour standards. The Group adheres strictly to
the relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where it operates,
concerning child and forced labour. The Group prohibits the use of child and
forced labour in all its operations. The Group provides equal opportunities
and fair treatment to all employees and job applicants.

To ensure compliance, the Human Resource Department conducts
background checks on all job applicants. Each potential job applicant is
required to complete an employment application form, which the Human
Resource Department reviews to verify the accuracy of the information
provided. The Human Resource Department is responsible for regulating
employment and preventing any non-compliant behaviours.
arise that cannot be handled by the Human Resource Department, they are
promptly reported to upper management for further action.

If any cases

We form a voluntary employment relationship with each of our employees
and working hours exceeding the regulatory limits is not allowed. We also
promote such concepts within the supply chain so as to protect the well-
being of labour of the entire community. We hope to spread out the ideas of
restricting child and force labour. If, unfortunately child labour is found, their
employment will be terminated immediately and remuneration will be made
according to the agreed wages.

During the reporting period, the Group did not recognize any material
irregularities in the laws and regulations relating to any labour standards.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group attaches great importance to occupational health and safety. It
recognizes that having an effective occupational health and safety policy is
critical not only to its employees and the group, but also to its customers
and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Group has established an labour
safety and health management system in accordance with relevant local
laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group is
committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment and
providing employees with occupational safety training. The Group also
provides guidelines to warehouse employees to enhance occupational
safety and health awareness. For example, place warning signs around the
warehouse to remind employees to use electric reach stackers with caution.
During the reporting period, the Group had no work-related deaths or
violations of relevant laws and regulations.

In addition, a professional cleaning company has been hired to sanitize
the office carpet and regularly clean the air conditioning, with extra care
taken during the pandemic. The entire office area is frequently sterilized to
ensure cleanliness. Additionally, apart from providing bottled water, a water
treatment system has been installed to filter and enhance the quality of
drinking water.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any work-related
fatality cases or any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
In the past 3 years, the Group’s operations recorded zero fatalities.

In addition to workplace safety, we promote healthy lifestyles to our
employees. The Group holds annual dinners, Christmas parties and New
Year lunches every year to share joy and happiness with employees and
enhance their sense of belonging. In addition, in order to provide employees
with a better work-life balance, overtime is discouraged unless necessary.
Encourage employees to participate in other activities, such as sports or
other interest classes, to achieve a healthy work-life balance.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group treasures talents and encourages employees to grow both
intellectually and professionally. The Group considers development and
training is one of the important elements contributing the success of the
Group. The training programs are classified into two types on-the-job
and internal training to different levels of staff. The Group has formulated
training plans for employees, including seminars and workshops., internal
and external. Employees are also highly encouraged to attend external
training courses and seminars that related to their job nature to enrich
their knowledge in discharging their duties. Our training covers products
knowledge, sales and marketing, operational skills, workflow management
skills, leadership and management skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The company places a premium on employee training, recognizing it as
a cornerstone of organizational success. As the pandemic recedes, the
company has made great efforts to provide employees with a plethora of
training opportunities. During the Reporting Period, the Group has organised
some training for our employees, 67% of our employees have joined
the training offered by the Group in 2023 which has increased by 27%
compared to the 40% in 2022, with the statistic listed below:
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Among our staff, 78% of female employees and 62% of male employees
attended the training held, the average training hours of every employee
is 24.4 hours. For the grade of trained staff, management have joined the
training course offered with an average training hours of 21.2 hours, and the
ordinary staff with an average training hours of 24.6 hours.

ERMOETH 73%HN X MEE M62%H
EHEESMTHETHNEI BEEED
FHREINBRA24 4/ NE-RZIETH
BAmMS SEELNTAEENFIIRE
Y F21 2/ EBE TN FHZIE
HEF24 6@ I RE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting and
engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve a
harmonious and sustainable development between enterprise and the
community.

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation in
community services, encouraging our staff to participate in various voluntary
activities, creating a strong social network and providing assistance and
supports for the people in need.

Through donations and volunteer activities, the Group hopes to give back
more to the society and help the less privileged groups in society. The Group
prioritizes social welfare, particularly in supporting vulnerable groups like
the elderly, children and the sick. Through these joint efforts, the company
not only fulfils its corporate social responsibility but also cultivates a culture
of compassion and empathy among its employees. By championing social
good, the Group embodies its core values and demonstrates its deep
commitment to creating a more equitable and inclusive society for all.

The 2023 (6th) Social Responsibility Conference was held in Beijing on
November 29. The Group was awarded the “Ona Award — Responsible
Technology Company in 2023”. Over the years, the Group has been actively
assuming social responsibilities, fulfilling social obligations, supporting and
participating in charity activities, and contributing corporate value to social
development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

We would continue to encourage employees to do good to their surrounding  FH PG #EBE S BE TH IS EH e RREN
communities by drawing their attention to diverse social and envionmental W AHBEZTH AR ECRIEL SR -
issues and organizing charitable activities.

Region Description HKD
& Ei:pun BT
Indonesia Donation for Priangan Nursing Home — Bandung (supplies, groceries, food) 2,000
ENE R 8 B4 Priangan Nursing Home— 2 (@& - BY)

Donation for Bhakti Luhur Orphanage — Bandung (supplies, groceries, food) 6,000

8% Bhakti Luhur Orphanage— &% (@ S &%)

Donation for St. Alphonsus Rodriguez Church — Jakarta (second hand PC/notebook computer, 48,000

printer for school)
8 B8 St. Alphonsus Rodriguez Church— HEfNE (B A -~ FER LR AENE  FTENH)

Donation for St. Monita Nursing Home — Yogyakarta (food and groceries) 3,000
882 St. Monita Nursing Home— B & (R RS )

Donation for Hanna Nursing Home — Yogyakarta (food and groceries) 3,000
2 #%Hanna Nursing Home— B (B &3 E)

Donation for Dharma Bakti Kindergarten — Yogyakarta (food and groceries) 3,000
8% Dharma Bakti Kindergarten— B & (R R E)

Donation for Berkat Iman Sejahtera Foster Home — Medan (supplies, groceries, food and 6,000

second clothes)
8 B4 Berkat Iman Sejahtera Foster Home— 158 (Flm & B R —FXK9)

muExRRERas —=-=4% bl



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B HBR

Region
@

ERWmE (&)

Description
Eii:pus

HKD
BT

Thailand
B

Initiated CSR program to celebrate the 35th anniversary, presented donation from “VST

ECS Golf Charity 2023” event to Division of Hematology, Department of Internal Medicine,
Ramathibodi Hospital.

BBCEAGELE ENRRKUISAE BN G F i mER AR mKRE VST ECS
2023 ERMANE] EH -

Celebrated 35th anniversary by presenting donation from “VST ECS Golf Charity 2023” to
Director of CU Systems Biology Center, Division of Research Affairs, Faculty of Medicine
Chulalongkorn University.

B ARIKISEE BREANED KSR ERAREBHBCURSKEMEF L ELE VST
ECS 2023%& & S B K IRE] -

Undertaken social responsibility activity and committed to supporting renewable energy
education. Donated 50 solar panels, 5 inverters and 5 Smart Power sensors to the 5 Technical
College.

AEMEEEEDWH NN BEERIREE BRI FE AR ET B 7505 K 5aER -
SE W EIFFOMEE BEIRBAE-

Donation to the Faculty of Information and Communication Technology of Mahidol University to
support education Procurement of materials Teaching equipment, textbooks, research, graduate
production, etc.

MISHEREASAAEBANRERBENIBEBHENEAYNEZRE ABE Aix 2
AEmSE-

The annual Kathin Ceremony at Wat Sri Bun Ruang to preserve a Buddhist tradition of Kathin
robe offering to monks after Buddhist Lent. Donations will be used for property renovation in
the temple.

—F—EHHEXETEWat Sri Bun Ruang22 17 - AR B T E & M2 (e EMER X R HH
ER - BRERANEETBME -

The annual Kathin Ceremony at Wat Parsi to preserve a Buddhist tradition of Kathin robe
offering to monks after Buddhist Lent. Donations will be used for property renovation in the
temple.

—FE—EHHEREEWat ParsiZR 1T AMRBFEE & MEEEEMERRNBHEL 18
TERREEFBE -

Monetary donations to Wat Khao Thong (Chueam Samakkhi Tham) to support Buddhism.
[MWat Khao Thong (Chueam Samakkhi Tham)#8 5k A 3235 i 2 -

Monetary donations to Wat Chinorasaram Worawihan, Wat Nang Ratchaworawihan to support
Buddhism.

[E]Wat Chinorasaram Worawihan * Wat Nang RatchaworawihanB 3% » LA 3 #5354 o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Region Description HKD
HE Ei:pan T
Singapore KKH SPECIAL NEEDS KID PARTY 16,000
TN KKH SPECIAL NEEDS KID PARTY

AMKSS SOCIAL MOVE 59,000

AMKSS SOCIAL MOVE

THE FOOD BANK SINGAPORE LTD 1,000

F sk & WER 1T AR (7 A BR A 7)(THE FOOD BANK SINGAPORE LTD)

AMKSS SOCIAL MOVE 59,000

AMKSS SOCIAL MOVE

China Donation for China Women'’s Development Foundation 100
A MPRGELEREESSRE
Waterdrop fundraising 200
KEERK
Organized a New Year blessing event for all employees, with a total of 183 people participated 30,000
RERBETABNFEMNEEE  LHF183A2MN
Organized Women'’s Day activities for all employees. A total of 110 people participated 6,000
AEREBTHABEZHES  £E110A210
Organized Dragon Boat Festival activities for all employees. A total of 183 people participated 10,000
REBEIABKTEES  H£BF183A20
Organized a health check-up activity for all employees, with a total of 183 people participated 81,000
REBET/ABRREREE  LHF183A2M
Organized annual travel activities for all employees, with a total of 183 participants 181,000
AERET/ABFEREEE  LE183A2MN
Organized Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day celebrations for all employees. A total of 183 30,000
people participated
REBETIABTIN BIEENEE H£H183A2H

Participated in the “Gathering Together in the New Era, Rule of Law by Our Side” Labor Law N/A
Knowledge Competition organized by the High-tech Zone Community Party and Mass Service

Center

2NEF R EEFRG T AR EEFRSR SERERMSE | SBEMHE i A
Participated in the firefighting skills competition organized by Eco Park Property N/A
SRR E R Y E AR B R RE e A
Participated in fire safety emergency drills organized by Eco Park Property N/A
2 NEREE B Y AR E R 2 e B ER A iE B
The 2023 Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “Bringing the Taste of the New Year Home” N/A
GSP activity has a total of 375 participants

2023F/BE AT e [HEFIRFBLR] EEGEES) - H375 A2 i

mEEARBRERAT —=-=F4% b3J



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B HBR

ERWmE (&)

Region Description HKD
HE it 5T
In the 2023 Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “Spring Health Delivery” GSP activity, a N/A
total of 279 people participated
2023 R AT Y [EREREERE] ZBHE  H279A 20 i A
2023 Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “Flower Arrangement” special event, with a N/A
total of 50 participants
2023F /BE AT g [HEIE] BREEE) - £50A 200 i A
In 2023, the Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “Celebrate May Day-Care for Workers” N/A
GSP activity, with a total of 336 participants
2023 F BEHATE [BENA—« BIZBIT | L HEHEE) 336 A2 i A
In 20283, the Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions held a GSP activity called “The Trade N/A
Union Sends Coolness, Heatstroke Prevention and Security”, with a total of 393 participants.
2023FBEHBRATE [TeXER MEREE ] EEH)ES) - H393A2 00 e A
In 2023, the Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “Gifts in the Golden Autumn” GSP N/A
activity, a total of 374 people participated
2023F BEHRATE [SNEE | TEHED) - H374 A2 i
2023 Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “Mid-Autumn Festival Dessert Making DIY” N/A
special activity, with a total of 60 participants
2023F /@E AT g [ IKEH B REDIY | FR)EH) - 60 A 20 TiE A
A total of 60 people participated in the 2023 Haidian District Federation of Trade Unions’ N/A
“Traditional Chinese Medicine Consultation” special event.
2023 ER AT [PEEZ ] EEEE H60A2M TEA
200 people participated in the 2023 Haidian District Federation of Trade Unions’ “Online N/A
Questions and Answers on Collective Negotiation, Factory Affairs Disclosure and Democratic
Management”
2023F BER AT g [REHE BMEAH REBEERHELME] H£200A20 TiEA
In 2023, the GSP activity of the Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions “The Trade Union N/A
Sends Warmth and a Healthy Winter” has a total of 275 participants.
2023F R HERTE [ TR AR BEBL | EHHER  Ho75 A2 000 TEA
In 2023, the Haidian Street Federation of Trade Unions carried out the “Learn Micro-Preaching N/A
and Receive Certificate Onling” learning activity for 750 people
2023FBEHMBRTE [BMEH R LEEI2HE  H750A2 TiE A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation in
community services, encouraging our staff to do good to their surrounding
communities by drawing their attention to diverse social and environmental
issues and organizing charitable activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

We concern about the environment, while maintaining the business
operation of the Group, we try to minimize any impact to the environment
while promoting the concept of sustainability development and protecting
the environment. The Group undertakes environmental protection as part
of its corporate responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance of
sustainable environmental development in promoting sustainability in its
operations. The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment. We seek to
response to the sustainability issues across our operations, from sourcing
materials to our office usage.

EMISSIONS

The Group has always emphasized environmental friendliness and reducing
emissions of all kinds. As our business is mainly trading in nature, the
operations of our Group do not have significant impacts on air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group is minimal. Due to the nature
of business, the most common air emission and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emission from our daily business activities are mainly generated from
the offices and warehouses consumption of electricity and the usage of
vehicles and paper. The Group does not produce any hazardous waste in its
operations.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, for example, the legislations
relevant to the Prevention of Harmful Effects on the Environment Caused by
Air Pollution, Noise, Vibration and Similar Phenomena.

Air and Greenhouse Gases

As the business nature of the Group is trading ICT products, the trading
operation does not involve the emission of GHG in significant quantities.
Therefore, we are not disclosing this figure. If in the future, our emissions
become larger, we will disclose and inform our stakeholders in a timely
manner.

RE-HERERRSE (F)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

The Group has no industry or car usage in the operation of our business
so we will not have stationary and mobile combustion emission, but we
discovered that the electricity usage will also generate GHG emission, as
such, we have consolidated the electricity usage data in our headquarter
— Hong Kong SAR, relevant statistics of GHG emission for the Reporting

Period is shown as the following table:

AEBNEBLEPI AP RIERERA
BEHEMALTEERELRBHMRESR-BH
MER EREITFEEREREH
Rt HAEA RPN AR —F BT R ITHE
MAEEE -REMENEERBENIEH
BEABFRETXR:

Indicators Unit Total (2022) Total (2023)
HEt FoEy

B B —EF) —EZZ=H)

Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 92.0 86.4

RERBEREE WS biE S

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.0 1.1

nE(84EE) m_fbirE g EE

Scope 1 — Stationary combustion Tonnes of COe Nil = Nil &

& &1 — EE IR G WS LiRE S

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil = Nil &

nE(BEEER) o—fhikgE EE

Scope 1 — Mobile combustion Tonnes of COe Nil = Nil &

#EN — BRI WE— LIRS 8

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil &= Nil &

mE(84EE) W-EtiEE ’BE

Scope 2 Indirect Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 92.0 86.4

0 [Z| 28 2 HE WS biEE

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.0 1.1

nE(84EE) m_fbirE g EE

Note: GHG emissions are computed based on the ESG Reporting Guide and  [fiff: BAEREHNENREBEBE - HLERER

Emission Factor from Cross-Sector Tools prepared by Greenhouse

Gas Protocol.

We can see from above table, the Total GHG Emissions CO,e was
decreased 6.1% compared with the same period last year. Achieving our
overarching management objectives reflects our dedication to addressing
environmental issues and demonstrates our commitment to sustainability

efforts.

The Group understand the impact brought by GHG and air emission, so we
strive to reduce the air and GHG emissions through improving process flow.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Solid Waste Emission

We uphold the principle of “4Rs”, namely Reduce, Reuse, Replace and
Recycle. As our business mainly focus on [T software trading, we do not
generate waste in our production process. In our offices, we produce only
municipal waste, which is unharmful, disposed through legal means and
collected by governmental services daily. Hence, we consider this issue
insignificant to the Group and do not report the figures here.

Wastewater

Our manufacturing process does not involve water consumption, the
Group does not have a lot of discharge to water. The wastewater of the
Group comes mainly from domestic usage from our offices. Since living
wastewater should not pose huge harm to the environment, we assume this
topic insignificant. The Group strictly discharges wastewater into municipal
sewage pipelines for uniform treatment in accordance with the “Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers”. The Group also calls
on employees to conserve water resources.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-compliance in
emissions with the relevant environmental laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on our Group.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group only uses resources in the office and warehouse operation, and
we earnestly reduce resource consumption and improve economic efficiency.

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while endeavours
to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent the unnecessary waste
of resources and minimize the impacts on the environment and natural
resources. Due to the nature of our business, the resources used by the
Group are principally attributed to electricity and paper consumed at our
offices and warehouses. Due to our business nature, our operation does
not involve direct consumption of water and packaging materials. Water
consumption by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the
Group’s offices and warehouse only.

RE-HERERRSE (F)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses, and we do
not involve large electric facilities for operation. In this report, we believe the
emission in our headquarter — Hong Kong SAR will be the main concern, the
table below shows the electricity usage and the intensity in our headquarter
in Hong Kong during the Reporting Period:

BN

HRASEEBIZBEEIME H—KRE
MAEREERE ¥BHUEITHFTEARESE
FRi-RNAREP ZMABARBEMELSE
BREINTHENHREAETEFIE TX
IR HMEHERMEEATNAEENLE
=3

The Group Unit Total (2022) Total (2023)
wEat et

EE B —E-F) (ZBZZ=F)

Electricity consumption kWh 185,091 175,973

REE TERE

Intensity (per HK Employee) kWh/Employee 1,969 2,173

R (BEE5EE) TR &8

The Group continues its commitment to reducing energy consumption by
reminding employees to switch off their computers before leaving the office,
switch off the lighting in the conference rooms and other functional rooms
when they are not in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy
saving mode whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep
the office temperature at 25° C so as to ensure the efficient use of the air
conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses is limited for daily office
use as well as some printing materials such as annual/interim reports and
circulars which are required to be distributed to the shareholders. To save
the environment, the Group continues to make efforts to reduce and recycle
the use of paper. We remind our employees to develop environmentally
friendly printing and copying habits, encourage double-sided printing
and scanning of documents on the company’s server system instead of
photocopying, and implement a password system for colour printing and
separate collection of waste paper and envelopes for reuse and recycling.
For these printed materials, we will not overprint, but print on demand, and
encourage our readers to use the company’s website.

B8 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

AEBEBHOANBLER RERE N
RMAERBEAER BEEACRZE:
ERHMHEERA LEATEBEFRE
HAREHERERN - HMTXBRERESNRAE
BEERRRNE - BRZEH AW -

SR K BV
AEERAERREMAGKERVXAENR
ERAER URLAMBRDBEZFR/TH
BERBREDRME - SRERFE A%
BESZONRSBREISEBERMNA 2
BETERNARRAD AR MENZBE
SREEHOR FAEFTHXHEFARRAF
ARBAGREFH BETYEAREHER
ZooRMNBRERARCERETAIEE
AEEK - HREBEORBYE AEETE
BENR RegxFRUOR - LB EEE
RARDR 24 -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group’s office platform electronic signature is officially launched in
September 2023. As a platform, it aims to provide technical support services
for electronic seal interconnection, mutual signature and mutual verification,
mutual trust and mutual recognition for ecological partners, and create digital
services in corporate business transactions. The official launch of cross-
regional, cross-platform and cross-application signature service functions
for electronic documents and electronic seals marks the full realization of
electronic business transactions.

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact and
use of natural resources is considered minimal. Nevertheless, our Group is
endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources as a responsible
corporate citizenship.

IMPACT ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL
RESOURCE

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainable development
and has always regarded environmental protection as one of its key tasks.
The Group’s management acknowledges its responsibility in monitoring
environmental impacts and the use of natural resources. As a socially
responsible citizen, we are concerned about the quality of the environment.
While conducting business, we strive to minimise our impact on the
environment. Our determination to promote environmental well-being is
reflected in the introduction of our Environmental Policy.

As the nature of the Group’s business is primarily the distribution of
IT products, the environmental impact and use of natural resources is
considered to be minimal. Nonetheless, our Group, as a responsible
corporate citizen, strives to protect the environment and natural resources.
The Group minimizes its impact on the environment through daily activities,
such as turning off computers, lights and electronic equipment after use,
and bringing water from a cup instead of drinking water from plastic bottles.
We all play a part in protecting the environment through the small actions we
take in our daily lives.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is an issue that troubles a multitude of corporations and
countries around the world. The Group is not likely to be unaffected and
will not leave ourselves unguarded. We have, apart from reducing GHG
emissions, developed adaptive measures.

Climate change is an issue that is plaguing many businesses and countries
worldwide. The Group is not likely to be unaffected and will not leave
ourselves unguarded. In addition to reducing GHG emissions, we have also
implemented adaptation measures.

According to the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”)
framework, climate-related risks can be categorised as physical risks and
transition risks. Physical risks can be acute or chronic in climate patterns.
Transition risks can be evolved from transition to a lower-carbon economy.

Due to our Group’s business nature is mainly distribution of IT products,
the supply chain may be disrupted by extreme weather events, such as
typhoon. Any decrease in capacity of timely delivery may result in a loss of
revenue.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RiFE - -#ERERRERD
REPORT INDEX

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
=4 ot EERS| M
A. Environmental

A IRIE

A1 Emission

A1 B
General Disclosure Information on: For more details, please refer to
(@) the policies; and “EMISSIONS”
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
— R BRERIOEEREHN MKk TNEEs AERE BHEZFE H20H [HRY)
ERERMNELESH:
(a) EE: &
(o) BFUETABERZENBEERIIROINER -
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Not material.
Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
HER R S N AR R R B - TEKe
EEEMBAMRERNEBL |ES
REHERY o B U - 309 30 % 52 B2 L TE 28
]
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse For more details, please refer to
gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, “EMISSIONS”
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
B (FE) RegRAEE (BE2)REREBAHME (. EFHEEZFHE F208 [Hnw]
BT E) R (MER)BE (NEBEREEENELR) -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Not material.
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, Trading ICT’s products operation does not
per facility). have a significant emission. Therefore, we

are not disclosing on this figure.
FEEREREEYES (UHHE) R (MER)EE (N TEX-

BEREEEMELS) - EEEMBANRERNERLEESE
REFEHY - F It FAPI IR M IR
o

muExnpEsRas —=-—=+% 061
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BE Bt HEZRS| M
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material.
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Trading ICT’s products operation does not
volume, per facility). have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
FEABRZEEEYHESE (UEAE) R (ER)BE (10 ~&EK-
BERESELELS) - BEEEABAMBREMRNER T EESL
REBERU - Bt B9 30 A 4R BE UL TR 8L
1o
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to For more details, please refer to
achieve them. “EMISSIONS” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
BRI YR EE R R AEIELEEMERNST BRESFE 20 R KR
B R g REIGERRE]
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Not material.

are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.

WHRERERBEEREZEMN A R AR

BERRRREDEL B RATERERA 2B o
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Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEKe
EEEMBAMRERNEB T &ESE
REHER Y - B U - 3930 4 3% 52 L TR 2
1% -
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
BE Bt HEZRS| M
A2 Use of Resources

A2 ER{ER

General Disclosure

— MR

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERBIR (BIEEER KR HMREME) BB

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RENESMNEE R SJHELER (B  RelUh) 25
EATETERAE) REE (NEHEERETEMLEE

B)e

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREKEREE (&

J=]
g
&
)
i
K
Pt
i
ll

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

BRIV RERANE B ERAEE LB IZME
B 2P B o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

i 3t SRERE B /KO £ AT B (R AT B RE - DA R PR aT S 9 A 7K
Mz B ERAERELE BRI 5] -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

HEmAAEEMANEE (ABEAE) R (NER)E
HEBMEE-

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”
EHEEZFIE F2HITEREM]

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”

EHAEZFIE B2HIEREM]
Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEK-
EFAMBAMREREB L EEL KN
S HERCY o Bt - B AP I A 45 BR L TR B
e

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
FAEZHE B2MTERERI RIIR
Boitg RERERE]

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEK-
EEEMBAMREREBT|EERKR
SEEM Y Bt B AR EE UL A
e

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEK-
EEEMBANREREBUEELERXR
E PR o B TP R R M TR B
e
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A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RIERRAREIR

General Disclosure

— MR

A3.1

A4 Climate Change
Ad RIRE1E

General Disclosure

— R IR

A4

64 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources.

MIEBETAHRBERRAERERERZENRK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
HMEBEHHRBERRABRNERZEREKINE
BEMTENTE-

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHEERAIREEHETAEETZENERRIR
HAEERBUR -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

Bl B AR AR e HBETAELATENERAEARS
- REHTH-

Annual Report 2023

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
FHESZHE B2HHER RER
RARERNTZE]

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
FHEZHE B2HHtR - RER
RARERNTZE]

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE
CHANGE”

EHESHE B2 [REE(L

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE

CHANGE”

EREZHIE B2H [RIxZL]



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RiE g

KEB®RE (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
Social

HE

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

B1 BENRZEIER

General Disclosure

— R EE

B1.2

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

FATHERE BERSEA TERE RE FEK

g Z b RIEAR DA R H A A8 S 42 T A9 -

) BE: R

) BFHBETAGEAZENHBEERZRROINER -

)
=

(&)

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
RIER EEED (2B RE)  Fiedn RivE 2
DHEB B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.
BRI FRAR KBS REERKLL R

For more details
“EMPLOYMENT”

BEREZHIF B2

For more details
“EMPLOYMENT”
EHREZFHIB #2

For more details
“EMPLOYMENT”
EBREZFHB #2

BHERERARLT

, please refer to

B [ f%)

, please refer to

LRREC

, please refer to

B [ f%)
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B2 Health and Safety

B2 RREZZ

General Disclosure

— AR IR EE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

66 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BHARELZ2TIFRERRBEEBABENL GBI

(a) BX &

(o) EFHBETABERLENEBERKRIINER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the reporting year.
RBE=ZF (BEREFE)BFEIEBEMIETHA
B LR o

Lost days due to work injury.

ETITGHEAXTIIERE-

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

WA BERREREL 2R A REBRTRE
BIA e

Annual Report 2023

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”

EREZHE B2 RRERE]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”

EREZHE B2 RRERE]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
FAEZFE B2HEREL 2]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
FHEZFE F2HRERRZ S



Aspects
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Summary
Bt
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Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B3 Development and Training

B3 #RE K

General Disclosure

— MR

B3.1

B3.2

B4 Labour Standards
B4 25 T X8|

General Disclosure

— R IR

B4.1

B4.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities

BRARTHE B EIT TIERE /0 3 S B Be M BR - 4 it

BINEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

BERREBER (MR REEE

HIEEA DL

The average training hours completed per employee by

CHRRERE)E DM

gender and employee category.
RERREBRERZESD BEEETAZINA RS-

Information on:

(@)
)

(a)
(o)

Description of measures to review employment practices

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRA IEE T R85 TH

128 53
BTHEITABEXN

2/ 4
o

B AR A R BRI PO B R -

to avoid child and forced labour.
il BEEMMEEARRET KBS T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

R E R BN ERR A BIFRTREE T -

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
BHEZFE F20 [#EEI

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”

BEREZHE F2MH ERMEI

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”
AR LIS B2 [HE RS

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”

BEREZHIE 20 85T EA)

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”
EAEZFE B2 5T

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”

BREZHIE F2H 85T 2

mEEARBRERAT -—=-=F4% 07
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B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 HAEGEE IR

General Disclosure

— MR

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
BRAERHEENERIE Lt & E R EGE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BinE B D MHEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

WA ERRERHERNED AERTEBENNME

FEEE URBRABINRITRER L.

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

LA B R e s B (IR AT RO IR S et & AR 018 51 -

ARBERITRERTTE.

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

HIlEREHRERRRESARRER RRENED

ARBERITRERTTE.
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For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EAEZFIE B2 [HEEEIE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EHEEZFE F20 [HEEEE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EREZHIE B2 HEEEE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EAEZFIE B2 [HEREE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY

CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EREZHIE B2 HEEEE]
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Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EmET

General Disclosure

— R

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

FHMRHEERNRBNREE LS BS RELLE

FHEHNRERITEN

(@) B &

(o) BFUHETABERZENBEEEIIROINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

EENCEXEMART HE % 2 HiEFEH T FE LW
Batke

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BEREARNERNRENRFEE AREE A

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

LB AT RS AR E R BB

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

HillE 2% T BEREMBKIEF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

HHEEEEHNRERLBRE URBEERTRES
JTE

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY”

EREZHE B2HEmEE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”
EREZHE BB ERET-ER
EERLTE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Customer
Opinions and Complaints”

FHEZFE B2HERET-BF
B REK]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Intellectual
Property Rights”

FHEZFHE F2HEREE AR
FERE

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”
FHREZFE BB EREET-E®
EERZY]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Privacy
and Data Protection”

FHMEZFE F2HEREE-ILE
N E R RE]

—z-=#«% 69
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B7 Anti-corruption
B7 RES

General Disclosure

— R

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAM IEARRR 9K HGGF RO R BN

(a) BX: &

(o) EFHETABERZEBOEBERKROINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RMERAUBITASERERDVEELENETFHFA
EHHOEE RFRER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

P E A R R RET URBBRTRER T -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
MimEERE TIRHORESFHE-

B8 Community Investment

B8 it&@iRE

General Disclosure

— R

B8.1

B8.2

70 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
FBNHEBERTRETALEMEIHETEFER
HEBITBGERMLIEF =B -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HAIEREE (MHE RREE - SIHFT R BE X
£ 8F)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EBIREMBAER (M RAERH) -

Annual Report 2023

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

BEREZHE F2HTRES]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

EHEEZFE F2HIRES]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

AR ST F2HIREA]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-

CORRUPTION”
BFREZFE F2HRES]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”

BEREZHE 20 HRKRE]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”
EHEEZFE F2HHEKRA]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”
FHAEZFE B2 LERE]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor
confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) except for some code provisions which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of five Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

ERELIHRSE

ARAEZE([EFE|)MAREZHE
S =+ A=+ -BLFEREEARR
SRz AEEET RS -

ARRBHNERRBTEZEEERFTMR MU
REMEFEREERREEED -

SREARR

REE-F-=F+-A=t+-ALEE:
ARA-EMTEEBAXHHARAA
(TR 22 F7)) 8 % £ R (TE AL K
ST mAHZ CEEATR ((REERT
BUL) T SR B R 5 T B L2 B T U4
X B 5h -

$“T%%%TM%%I&§ XERS®

BoEEREEE %ﬁ?é%‘ﬁi I B
XBHFEMS FW
ARABIZETBZREERREERS A

T
EEg

A8 A

EEe s KEBHAEREZTSABR AR
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin (Resigned on 4 January 2023)
Mr. Zhang Dongjie (Appointed on 19 January 2023)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah (Retired on 25 May 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Li Yi (Retired on 25 May 2023)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from

time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving better performance of the Company. In designing the board
composition, board diversity can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, professional skills, industry experience and
knowledge and length of service. In considering these perspectives on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity Policy into account in
relation to the appointment of directors of the Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve
better performance of the Company. The Company has achieved gender
diversity in the past and will continue to identify suitable potential candidates
to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
JJ'—%A-* ‘L\#ﬁ ] (“T-,'_:‘)

%I%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%@ﬁ%%iZ&ﬁ‘
ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁ\mﬁﬁf*%%° Lk
i%‘lf%ﬂﬁi%ﬁ Fﬁ/,\§$ E’a\
BEWRBEMNS Z%ﬂi%ﬁ%ﬁ#
- Iﬁ§$§AE%% REMEELRR
EEHBEEER -

EEEHEZ I
EEEEHE—HARE BIEFERRS
ez mA ([EFERESTILBE])

EERSEFERT MABLEEXERNMESN
ARRAKRBA - REEFGZKRBEAGRKEI

ZHEREXEREEEXRESZLL BEED
BRMR Fi XEMBEBER FER
BETTEERNANBIEBRBEFR- EEZSE
ZHLEEE AR M AR EREEBR
ARARBREEERRER-

REZEEREEVEABABEERNIKE
%A%E%%@&E’ﬁ&@ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
DEREZGHNEZTTILBE -REE
—=F+=ZA=+— Eﬁigw'h%éa
@&%M* " EEREEARAEEFEER
NEBREEGNE S TIEBEK

BREESRZTILREEAR REEAT
Rz &8s MBERER AT RERRET
ARBMRB - ARBBECERMENZ T
bt AKEBREFTEVEAENEERE
A RERMRZ T -

B1fE

RAREBZEBERECRNESS &
AREARNFZEEREFEEA TEEER
FREGREBARARAFTEESRNQARK
N-2BREEETHMEET AR AR
ZRTE o

BUEEARBERAT —=-=F4% 13



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2023 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of

Meetings
Directors X HE /BTGB IH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMFEE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam TRETEE 4/4
Mr. Li Yue FREE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau R e 4/4
Mr. Gu Sanjun BE=E4iE 4/4
Non-executive Director FHMITES
Mr. Zhang Dongjie RAREE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Li Wei TELE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 4/4
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FREREELE 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and non-
executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,
Mr. Gu Sanjun, Mr. Zhang Dongjie and Mr. Wang Xiaolong, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2023
due to other important engagements. All other directors had attended the
2023 annual general meeting to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with
the Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed
for any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of
service shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a
specific months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial
annual emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration
payable to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE (E)

ZEREEESE

ARRBEFCHEARBRZRE A O E
BRERER -BEFAFZEMFETERNER
THZE BIFEREEEMN—HTHELEEAR
BrEHMBAKLLE BRARSEZEHRNE &
SE-RERBBRHR SRTESTZNIEF
EHcBEE MEFEHESFEHNENS
HWITEEZHM-

EEZE ERRRBIBEFNREELRAR
BlzHBERAUTEERE REXNAQF
ZHBERAN 2REELAZLIE=F
WERT X MEAERZTEHEZSHE
RERIIER/NEBEFTENEZIHEFTAR
BZERZEABRAGLEIBRRER -

AEBRHEFT2MARME B
b BRRSITREANECHE
EREEZ G LT
THRTEE B

REZESETHRTESTSZIRBE ARR
KEHE HMREFSTABARAXBEMNS
ZER RtEgRTVEHE - REEF@HRE
BReARAZBER2ERRREAZREE
K -FEENZ BEABEMRARGR X
RAZHFE EFEREZTEBRRERARKE
MARREERERER  RITHIERT -

RBARRMABERMAECK EFHHE
THEEREEEMNALTRES UNEHE
FECBRRERAENREEETAH -E=S
ERBEZEZENESEETREARATE
ERAXERL ERTAERERER -
RARFEABERZBAUE7H REEKRR
BERgL =02z HEEEZ (HWAH
WH=H=2FHE ARAKREAENIR=
DZT)ERERT EBRESFERIE
—FERERE—KR-

BUEEARBRERAT -—=-=Fa% 11



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEEB®RSE (F)

The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the Directors
standing for re-election.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control
systems and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set
out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBOTEBRRH

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) BERBEE (LE) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei FREEE 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERESL & 2/2

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2023 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
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Committee meeting is set out below: T
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HEBITEERE
Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) TREEE(£E) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERESL A 1/1
. . . =
Nomination Committee REZEEE
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the R EZEES@ v FEREOEGERNESY

structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2023 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The
attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set

REZBEABUTESFHEIRE=A
BIYFATEETHEXE - ERKBE L FER
RELZEgERIBERAINWMT

out below:
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
R BITEERY
Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) FEMEE (FE) 11
Mr. Li Wei FREEE 11
Mr. Lam Hin Chi EREBpLE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERESL A 1/1

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$7,425,000 and HK$1,455,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of the
Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control
framework, covering all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The risk management and internal control framework
also provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.
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Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association

On 20 April 2023, the Board proposed to amend the articles of association
of the Company in order to, inter alia, (i) conform the existing memorandum
and articles association of the Company to the Core Shareholder Protection
Standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; (ii) reflect certain
updates in relation to the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of the
Cayman lIslands; and (i) make other consequential and housekeeping
improvements.

The proposed amendments and the proposed adoption of a new amended
and restated articles of association was approved by way of special
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2023.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20 April
2023, 24 April 2023 and 25 May 2023 and Company’s circular dated 24
April 20283.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the development of information technology (“IT”)
product channel and provision of technical solution integration services.
The three major business segments are enterprise systems which provides
enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services; Consumer
electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud computing which
provides cloud computing solutions and services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 12 and
pages 14 to 18 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 15 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social and
Governance Report are set out on pages 24 to 70 of this annual report.
The Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages 71 to 86 of the
annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial
Summary on page 212 of this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2023 represented
approximately 6% (2022: approximately 6%) of the Group’s total turnover,
and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 13% (2022: approximately 15%) of the Group’s total turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2023
represented approximately 14% (2022: approximately 18%) of the Group’s
total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 46% (2022: approximately 52%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2023.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 112.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 of HK25.7 cents per ordinary share (2022: HK17 cents).

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy adopted by the Company is based on a number of
factors and conditions. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, any declaration
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company and the distribution of dividend should be made of out of profit.
When recommending an interim or a final dividend, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the financial results, liquidity position, general business
conditions and strategies, capital requirement for future development as well
as the distributable reserves of the Company (comprise of the Company’s
reserves excluding capital redemption reserve as set out in note 16 to the
financial statements) and the retained earnings of other members of the
Group and any other factors the Board may deem relevant from time to
time.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 114 to 115 and note 16 to the financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings and lease liabilities

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 20 and 21 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 212.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company repurchased
14,028,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by

BE HEIFEEES

RBE-_Z_=F+_A=+—RHLLFE"
ARARIRBRERES 514,028,000
TER-EEARMND FUEHE - AQFEE

the Company are as follows: f&hz FHBEWT :
No. of Highest price Lowest price Aggregated
shares per share per share price
Month of repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HKS) (HK$)
Boz BRESER BSRHEER RERK
BEzAH RGOEAR (E7T) () (/%75)
June 2023 —ZE-=%5A 1,040,000 4.09 3.94 4,160,660
July 2023 —ZE-=F+A 904,000 3.96 3.85 3,628,720
August 2023 —ZE-=%N\A 1,402,000 4.00 3.87 5,553,400
September 2023 —E-=FhA 3,350,000 4.27 4.08 13,976,980
October 2023 —ZT-_=%+A 4,408,000 4.20 3.91 17,747,840
November 2023 —E-_=F+—AH8 1,100,000 3.98 3.79 4,261,560
December 2023 —E-=F+=H 1,824,000 3.99 3.68 7,037,160
14,028,000 56,266,320

The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to an
enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per
share.

Apart from the above, the Company also acquired, through some trust setup
specifically for purpose of employment compensation, a total of 4,626,000
ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023 from the open market at a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$18,746,000. These shares would be used primarily for providing
employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition
of shares are recognised in the “Deferred reserve”
statement of changes in equity.

in the consolidated

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin (Resigned on 4 January 2023)
Mr. Zhang Dongjie (Appointed on 19 January 2023)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah (Retired on 25 May 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Li Yi (Retired on 25 May 2023)

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular.
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The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2023 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out on
pages 19 to 23.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of
ordinary shares or

percentage of
issued share

Long/Short underlying shares capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity held Company
BEEERY e NEIIEE- 6y
BEHA 7 RE 14 HEROEHE BREAZBOEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 82,333,200 5.73%
FEMFEE e BEREBA
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.66%
e HEfEER (Note 1)
(Bst1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.22%
TR ENI £ (Note 2)
(Hiztz)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 2,193,600 0.15%
TR EE o) EmEAA
Mr. Gu Sanjun Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
B=FhAE TR EnEBA
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
BREIM e 5o EmEAA
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/
or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:
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Number of
ordinary shares or Approximate
Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
BEEERY AR RE
EEHA %" RE 14 HEROD#E Epald
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 82,333,200 5.73%

FEMEE e BEnER A

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.66%

HE REEE R (Note 1)

(H17E1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.22%

HE RIEHER (Note 2)

(Bfat2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.22%

BIF 2+ 5= BaRERA

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.66%

HE ZPEEE R (Note 1)

(H17E1)
Long Family interest 82,333,200 5.73%

HeE ENiY 4 (Note 3)

(H5£3)

muEARRERAT -—=-—=F4% 95



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

RE (&)

Number of

ordinary shares or

FERREEMBALTRERS -
HEROREER Z2ERR

Approximate

Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
FEEBRY A IR #E
EERE WA 514 HERDHE Epild
L &L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.66%
"R EEEAA (Note 4)
(Hizta)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.55%
e (FE)BRAA e BEnEA A (Note 5)
(#1:ts5)
RN 6 T8 B A SR AR 19 Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.55%
BRATA gE AR ER (Note 6)
(Hiite6)
RV EERA R A A Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.55%
HE R E R (Note 7)
(Het7)
AT ARBRFTES Long Interest of a controlled corporation 152,211,998 10.59%
REEEEREES e Ry EEER (Note 7)
(Htat7)
A S D ERTT Long Security interest in shares 152,211,998 10.59%
HE A #E FR M 2 (Note 8)
(B:t8)
RINEEEF Long Interest of a controlled corporation 152,211,998 10.59%
HE R R (Note 8)
(Hizt8)
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled corporation 145,273,600 10.11%
e REEE R
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 130,406,626 9.08%
HE BB A
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

Notes:

1.

311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

81,833,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li
Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by %
I ta B AR D B R 2 A

14.96% of the shares of A3 TH 15 Gk i L FE SR () AR A 7 are held by
YT EERAR A A

100% of the shares of &I T E LR AR A A are held by &I AR
BNEEEEEEERLZE8E.

89.26% of the shares of B3t} O R 7T are held by BIRIMNEEIE 2.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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5. e (BE)BRARZE2HMEBEITRAH
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6. AYIMmIEEBHEERNBRATZ14.96%
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the New Scheme. Further details of the
New Scheme are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing
business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which they may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of corporate
activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 32 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less
than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
20283 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS Holdings
Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited, (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
101 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial staterments section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRESTEE

MREFFTEAEIRERMANEZHE BAY ARG EVERRNEFRAEEN TR FLEARERMENE
BEalBRRILARARETREN AN TSHELETRRHEBNER -

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.11.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted
to HK$11,308,675,000 (approximately 34% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2023.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and
the future expenses necessary to make the sales. Future
demand and selling prices of technology products are
highly susceptible to factors such as industry standards,
technological changes and customer preferences, which are
constantly changing and could change very rapidly.

Determining provision for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the net realisable value of inventories as a key
audit matter because any write-down or provision may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and because the estimation of the net realisable values
involves the exercise of significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain.

102 vSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and implementation of the Group’s key internal controls
over the inventory write-down and provision assessment
process, including the Group’s monitoring controls over
slow-moving inventories;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual items
with relevant purchase records, including purchase invoices
and goods receipt notes;

o evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity sold
subsequent to the reporting date and with reference to
inventory turnover days during the current and previous
financial years; and

° assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
estimation of write-down and provision for inventories
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
movements in the balance of provision for inventories
during the current year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.8.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables, net of an expected
credit loss allowance of HK$705,170,000, amounted to
HK$14,645,567,000 (approximately 45% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2023.

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. For customers about whom
the Group has specific information, the loss allowance is
assessed on an individual basis. For the other customers, the
trade receivables are segmented by geographical locations,
since the loss patterns for customers in different geographical
locations are significantly different based on the past
experience of the Group. The loss allowance is determined
based on ageing of the trade receivables and loss rates,
adjusted for current economic conditions and forward-looking
information.

We identified the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because it involves
significant management judgement which is inherently
subjective and thereby increase the risk of error or
management bias.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and implementation of the Group’s key internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection, and estimation of
expected credit loss allowance;

° evaluating the Group’s accounting policy for measuring
expected credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o for trade receivables which the loss allowance
is determined on an individual basis, evaluating
management’'s assessment by assessing the
creditworthiness of the customers with reference to publicly
available information and reviewing underlying documents
where applicable;

° for trade receivables which the loss allowance is measured
using a provision matrix, assessing the appropriateness
of management’s basis of customer segmentation with
reference to the historical loss rates for customers in the
different geographical locations; testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the underlying documentation, including sales
invoices; and

° re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31
December 2023 based on the Group’s accounting policies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements ontinueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Pui Ngar.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fr & MK

pE

As at 31 December 2023 R=ZE-=F+=-H=+—8

2023 2022
—EB-=5F —E-=
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LES &R 5 909,417 917,523
Intangible assets BEE 6 354,650 356,037
Interests in associates i RN o 8 723,506 676,423
Interest in a joint venture REEREREZ 9 - 7,873
Deferred expenses EIEF S 10 1,557 991
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 19 146,129 166,050
2,135,259 2,124,897
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMERFKIA 10 16,823,164 14,338,283
Other financial assets HEhemEE 11 1,428,109 4,402,211
Inventories F&E 12 11,308,675 10,072,285
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHES 13 3,325,140 3,828,930
32,885,088 32,641,709
Total assets s E 35,020,347 34,766,606
EQUITY i
Share capital il 14 143,689 145,092
Reserves fE 8,079,147 7,512,686
Total equity HRERS 8,222,836 7,657,778
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
mamBRnE (&)

As at 31 December 2023 R—FT-_=F+—-A=+—H

2023 2022
—EB-=5F —E-—
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Contract liabilities AHEaE 17 1,184 2,379
Lease liabilities HEARE 20 209,014 117,407
Borrowings BE 21 - 1,447,455
Deferred tax liabilities EERTEE & 19 31,210 36,322
241,408 1,603,563
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables EH5NEMENFRIE 17 16,962,819 14,116,329
Other financial liabilities HEHtmemaE 18 668,628 3,708,334
Contract liabilities AREaE 17 559,144 449,341
Lease liabilities HERE 20 129,375 107,841
Borrowings == 21 8,103,976 6,975,228
Taxation payable FETRETR 132,161 148,192
26,556,103 25,505,265
Total liabilities we s 26,797,511 27,108,828
Total equity and liabilities EEkBEEREE 35,020,347 34,766,606
Net current assets RBEEFE 6,328,985 7,136,444
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBER 8,464,244 9,261,341

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March BEEZ€WR T _-_NFE=A -+ — B EKEK

2024, RE T2 o

Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William

Z{EM FER

Director Director

EF =

The notes on pages 117 to 211 form part of these financial statements. FITE2NNEZHM T RAM BT 2 — &
/)j\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FERaR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

=F+ZA=+—BLFE

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Revenue & 22 73,891,296 77,323,994
Cost of sales SHE R A (70,394,780) (73,946,070)
Gross profit FEH| 3,496,516 3,377,924
Other gains, net Hu A %58 23 9,224 15,313
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAXZ (1,358,321) (1,369,453)
Administrative expenses TERFAX (712,272) (695,516)
Operating profit £ 5 T 24 1,435,147 1,328,268
Finance costs &R 25 (340,054) (258,490)
1,095,093 1,069,778
Share of associates’ profits DAREEE QR A 8 75,028 14,633
Share of a joint venture’s loss DMEEEREEE 9 (7,918) (2,628)
Profit before taxation B B A 1,162,203 1,081,783
Taxation TiIE 26 (240,170) (258,712)
Profit for the year F R A 922,033 823,071
Attributable to: BT AL REA
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREZEFEA 922,033 823,071
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREF (B
- Basic — &R 28 65.62 cents Bl  58.15 cents /&l
- Diluted —#E 28 65.62 cents Bl 58.15 cents /&l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders BEFAEAEERE
Final dividend proposed F R R B AR 2. 27(i) 369,000 247,000

The notes on pages 117 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GReHEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -=F+_-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit for the year F R K 922,033 823,071
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FREMEEBA BRFE:

Exchange differences ME =58 (46,157) (640,294)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEBABEE 875,876 182,777
Attributable to: LT ATRERN:

Equity shareholders of the Company RARIERFAA 875,876 182,777

The notes on pages 117 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ok §=% kS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HILFE

Equity
attributable
to the
Capital Company's
Share Share  redemption Capital General  Translation Other Deferred Retained equity
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings  shareholders
Y|
EXER EEBEA
i R &E ffE BRGE - EiGfE g1 EEGE REEF EfbER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt TR T T Tt T T T T
Note () Note fi) Note (i) Nofe fiy) Note (1) Note i) Note ()
Vi) Wty ViG] Mty ity Mty Mt
Balance as at 1 January 2022 RZEZZE-A-BrEH 145,517 883,185 8,707 799 328,368 211,689 (84,239 (99,954) 6,517,358 7911430
Proft for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 823,071 823,071
Other comprehensive income Ep2EHA - - - - - (640,204) - - - (640,204)
Total comprehensive income for the year M2 EWAZE - - - - - (640,294) - - 823,071 182,777
Dividend paid BARE - - - - - - - SR (328%)
Transfer of reserve RERER - - - - 49,087 - - - (49,287) -
Share repurchased BEkRH
- par value -EE 425) - - - - - - - - (425)
- premium paid -BHAE - - - - - - - - (21816) 21816)
~ transfer between reserves -HEmEs - - 45 - - - - - (425) -
Deferred shares purchased BREERIERR - - - - - - - (26,886) - (26,886)
Vesting of deferred shares EERNGRE - - - - - - - 5,504 - 5,504
Balance as at 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZAZT-A
24 145,000 883,185 9122 799 TIEH (428605 @239 (21269 686005 7857778
Representing: R&:
Share capial & 145,092
Reserves BE 7,265,686
Proposed dividend HERE 247,000
7,657,778
Balance as at 1 January 2023 RIFZ=F-A-HzEH 145,092 883,185 9,132 799 377,655 (428,605) (84,239) (121,246) 6,876,005 7,657,778
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 922,083 922,033
Other comprehensive income E2EHA - - - - - (46,157) - - - (46,157)
Total comprehensive income for the year M2 EWAZE - - - - - (46,157) - - 922,033 875,876
Dividend paid BRE - - - - - - - - a6 (246656)
Transfer of reserve RlERER - - - - 54405 - - - (54,405) -
Share repurchased Bk
- par value -HE (1,403) - - - - - - - - (1,403)
- premium paid -BTHE - - - - - - - - (54,864) (54,864)
~ transfer between reserves -RhEEEE - - 1,403 - - - - - (1,403) -
Deferred shares purchased BEEELERA - - - - - - - (7,895) - (7,895)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 RIEZ=E4ZA=1+-A
be 143,689 483,185 1053 79 0060 (7476 @429 (129041 7440710 82228%
Representing: f%:
Share capital RA 143,689
Reserves BB 7,710,147
Proposed dividend RS 369,000
8,222,836

The notes on pages 117 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

REREZB®WR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference
between the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and that of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April
2002; and (c) the premium arising from the new issue of shares, net of
share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled
shares of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to employees and directors
of the Company and the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 2.17(d).

According to the current Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10%
of their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the
statutory surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
For the purpose of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve,
the profit after taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting
standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before
profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant
regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or to
increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries
for the transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
(Note 2.2(a)).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s
shares through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment
compensation. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.13(c).

Wit

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

(vii)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FellanBH®

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HILFE

2023 2022
—Eg2-= —=E- -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’OOO
B 5T FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEH RS RE
Net cash generated from operations KEMS RS FHE 30(a) 891,882 297,719
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREENEH - (163)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong B EBIEINGIE (251,652) (230,600)
Net cash generated from operating activities K EBFTISIR € H R 640,230 66,956
Cash flows from investing activities WEEHZHRERE
Interest received EWCRE 29,256 20,172
Payment for purchase of property, BE %% BEREER
plant and equipment B (38,822) (21,588)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEEREEENTN - (2,448)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment BRABFTS A 1,975 301
Increase in pledged deposits e EIRIF K (93,149) (583,300)
Investment in associates ABEE R BRI ZIRE (41,271) -
Deemed acquisition of associate to %ﬁf’ﬁ”&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@ E=100]
subsidiary, net of cash acquired NEBRERERS - 10,368
Purchase of financial assets HBESHEE (94,697) (546,384)
Disposals of financial assets HESHMERE 315,895 42,094
Dividends received from associates [ H‘s‘? ZRRIRE 58,569 23,497
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEEBAE (FTA)
investing activities ZIREFE 137,756 (1,057,288)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEBEEHCREERE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHSERT D 30(b) (110,602) (131,152)
Payment for the repurchase of shares fE RS H ?A (56,267) (22,241)
Proceeds from new bank loans LRI E RIS A 30(b) 24,020,079 23,176,179
Repayment of borrowings EHEBE 30(b) (24,368,329) (21,028,510)
(Net Pledging of assets for)/proceeds from HEh& @E BE(DER
other financial liabilities BEFHE) / FT§31E  30(b) (263,766) 252,347
Payment for deferred shares ERERR (9 1< 3K (7,895) (26,886)
Vesting of deferred shares ’E FE R 1) B 8 - 5,594
Interest paid EERPAS) 30(b) (340,054) (258,490)
Dividend paid BRI E (246,656) (892,896)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEES (FTA) A5
financing activities ZH&FE (1,3783,490) 1,573,945
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and fﬁi &iﬁ/\ ZEM
cash equivalents L)/ hEEE (595,504) 583,613
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January E@* H —BzBEek
ReZHEY 3,245,630 3,247,498
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEE[E R B) 2 & (1,435) (585,481)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—8z2
RekBReEED 13 2,648,691 3,245,630
As at 31 December 2023, the cash and bank balances consist of E‘é: T_=—F+ZA=+—8H Re kET
HK$676,449,000 (2022: HK$583,300,000) deposits for the issuance of the &5 &k B2 3E FH REAEEREREMNE76,449,000
standby letters of credit. ﬁé T (ZZF % :583, 300 ooo,%rc )IF R o
The notes on pages 117 to 211 form part of these financial statements. FITE2NNEZHM T RAM BT 2 — &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt 35 80 = B &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -=F+_-A=+—HILFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
of information technology (“IT”) product channel and provision of
technical solution integration services. The three major business
segments are enterprise systems which provides enterprise
system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services;
Consumer electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud
computing which provides cloud computing solutions and services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd
Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2024.

Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. The HKICPA has issued certain
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ERETHHE
MBI E A

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1

118 vSTECS Holdings Limited

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " T - =F+_-A=+—HILFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have effect on the financial statements and
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Consolidation

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, an investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

2. ERSFHBE»

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

@

120 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2.14, 2.15 and 2.18 depending on
the nature of the liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.9)
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture (see note
2.2(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

122 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Notes to the

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)
=F+ZA=+—BLFE
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2. ERSFHBE»

2.2 BB

()

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see note 2.9).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”"),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
E-T o=+ -A=t+—HItFE

2. EXRSFHEHER
2.3 INEBE (#)

©

BEExaRARAT -

B A

FE BT AR GRS
AR ER R )
MR EERSREEE
I+ AUE A R B R
T RS B2 R

(i) BEErRABEEHEA
2 TERGE

(i WARRBXRFHE
FHE RIFUFHE
RSB R
ZRAZBE ﬂETE’ME)E
MBFTFE EUEB
T%%X%E%ﬁlﬁt
FWRARAX R

(i) FTAEAMGBEN=FE®
REEERZB LI
5o
EHRAKRBER BEREN
¥BNFRERBRENET
RESEREZHANEME
BMTAfMEECER =%
HIAEM2ERA R H
EFMNEBRK - JIAEME
ARAZERLZHEBEETHS
BEBEEENEALEME
BEz—#HH

WHESIBEBMELECHE
RAVERBERZBINE
BrEERABRE ¥R
Wi SE R B Z [E R o

—=%% 125



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

BERSHHEK»
24 ME -BENKRE

2. Material Accounting Policies (ontinued 2.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment,
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Buildings held for own use carried at cost %A AN FI B 1E S AT

Right-of-use assets arising from leases of properties, plant and
equipment M3 HE LK EHEMEEANTAEEE

Furniture and fixtures X & K&

Office equipment 3 2 = & {4

Computers & fi§

Motor vehicles YTE

Leasehold improvements 78 & #) 2 # &

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment continuea)

2.5

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.7). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software 10%
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.5

2.6

2.7

128 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Intangible assets (continueq)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.7).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) (see notes 2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, term deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note
2.8); and

- lease receivables.
Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
listed and unlisted securities, structural deposits, and

derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

venture and other non-financial assets

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint

Notes to the

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

Financial Statements (continued)
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=F+ZA=1+—HLILHF

=3

=—F— Ej

H=—=

2. ERSFHBE»

(i

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications

that the investments in subsidiaries,

associates and

a joint venture and other non-financial assets may be

impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment. The recoverable

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their

present value using a pre-tax discount

rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the asset.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into

the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or cash-generating units
(“CGUSs"). Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro

rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial period. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the

interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

U

Expected credit losses (“ECLS”)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive). The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

()

132 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Expected credit losses (“ECLS”) (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated (i) through individual
basis with reference to the credit enhancements obtained
or (ii) using a provision matrix based on the aging of
the receivables and the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the debtor
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i) Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

(i) Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.21(jii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i

W)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. ERSFHBE»

2.8 Trade and other receivables continued) 28 ESFREMEWFIE (2)

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

(v)  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under relevant accounting standards,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar
transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity.

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other

financial assets

Investments in debt and equity securities and other financial
assets are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the assets or they expire. These
assets are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

(i)  Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments
Non-equity investments and other financial assets held
by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the assets are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the assets is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 2.21(jii)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continued)

(i)  Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments (continued)

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the assets comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the assets are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the assets are derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the assets (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.21(iv).

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with changes therein recognised in
profit or loss.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.11 Inventories (continuea)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8.

2.13 Share capital

@

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction
from equity. Repurchased shares are presented as a
deduction from total equity.

Deferred reserve

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of
the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically
for purpose of employment compensation. The reserve
is credited with the amount of fair value of shares on
granting to awardees, and the relevant employment costs
net of any proceeds from the awarded shares are debited
to the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value
of the awarded shares and their costs of acquisition is
transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies (ontined 2. EREFHEHE»

2.14Trade and other payables and contract liabilities QUE G REMESREU
RENEE

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. B REMEMNREERIZRF
Except for financial guarantee liabilities, trade and other ERR - BKREEREBEWN EH
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using N EH A A SRIBEAE T A BB F
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting BEALEEKAGTE BIEMR
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. FEDK AR AT -
A Financial guarantee is contract that require the issuer (i.e. BMERERABEREITA(HER
the guarantor) to make specified payment to reimburse the ANMBEEH LA ZBKRAIAFE
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder ERBERERIEZA(IBFEAL
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when HEBEHE AR B RENK
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial MEXzBRXAFEBAELHE
guarantees issued are initially recognized within “trade and AR -BEEHIBERERE R
other payables” at fair value, which is determined by reference BAFTERIE S R EMERNK
to fees charged in arm’s length transaction for similar services. HIBR EAFEDNZS2BEAER
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised STREBEURBWER 2 &R
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of BE -VIFERE mVERRE
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. The EWAzeBIZERFHANER
Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on RAEEAEL ZRMEEREIA -
the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs (see notes TEFBEREEEBHAZELNR
2.8 (i) and (i) on the financial guarantees are determined to be B WARREERZBHEES
higher than the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in B(RHWF2.80&(IN)EEAS
respect of the guarantees. RIERZ 85 & HEME R RIE]

TSR ERERE-

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non- EAEEBAMEEWRA &K
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the BEREPINAATREZRE
related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract liability would also BT UER(RHFE2.21) c£R
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive SEERBE RSN MAE
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the HEEGEEMNBERATREZ
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable REFR GHNBETKETUAER-
would also be recognised (see note 2.8). EZEBRAT HESERKIE

i T ARER (LK FE2.8) -
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. EXRSFHEHER
2IGsFEEEREMEME

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.15Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial

liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequently, these interest-bearing borrowings and
other financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and the
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.16 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ERSFHBE»

216 TBH (&)

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.16 Income tax (continueq)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.17 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

144 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Employee leave entitiements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of
financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

Deferred shares

Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the
vesting condition (see note 2.13(c)).
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(i)  Onerous contracts
An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.

2.19 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)
2.19 Leases (continued)

U

146 vSTECS Holdings Limited

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.7).
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2.19 Leases (continued)
(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Notes to the

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)
=F+ZA=+—BLFE

=

2. ERSFHBE»

2197 & (&)

()

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change

in future lease payments arising from

a change in an

index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual

value guarantee, or there is a change

arising from the

reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for

a lease that is not originally provided

for in the lease

contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a

lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting

period.
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2.19 Leases (continued) 219 E (&)
(i)  Asalessor i EALHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease MAEEEREBEA ER
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an HERGKREETSHERSD
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it ABMEHENILKEHE &
HEKBSEBRBEERERESR
BRBE KD R R & D ke
ETERBAARF - HESEE
MmERE-TA HEHE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating RECEHE-WAKEEHEAF
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from NHBEA - sHDE2ER
the head lease. HEEAMTRAEEEYSE
ARBMEHEAKRERE -

2.20 Segment reporting 2200 F W F
®

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item 2
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the &
N

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most SEEsEBTHREEBAE M

senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.21 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 such that information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sales of goods
that had an original expected duration of one year or less is not
included.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continuea)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

M

(i

)

150 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Revenue from service maintenance contracts are
recognised over the period of the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.

Annual Report 2023

2. ERSFHBE»

221l aEm R EMKA (&)

EEAEE WS RE B AER
BRZE—FFBWT:

()

(i

(iv)

g
WHEREFPEALEMNER
iR WE T eEIEER
KEAMBEER WO MERAE
e S -

AR% &
RBEREAOKRENA O
MFERR

FE WA
S WA 2R B BR A BOE R
JE 5T B FE R o

LS ON
KEFLEMHREZBEEKA
A B B B 2 HE A ST By
R
KB LmEREZBESWAR
ZERE 2B ER B R
BRI 75 B

BURT 78 B 7Y & B2 AR 35 8 UL B
4 B) S AN R B 75 & # Bh B
IR E - RPN
RER -BEXKSEMEL
MXHmWE RELEMXH
HRAAERAGEEREE R
MR RBA -
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.23 Related parties

@

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.23 Related parties (continued)

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and the assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of group entity to which relate, including Chinese
Renminbi (‘RMB”), the Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$"), the
Singapore Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian
Rupiah (“RP”).

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the
end of reporting period is mainly arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in the United States
Dollar (“US$"), a currency other than the Group’s entities’
functional currencies, as disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements.

A 5% strengthening/weakening of the US$ against the
respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities
(except for HK$ which is pegged to US$) at 31 December
2023 would have decreased/increased the post-tax profit
and retained earnings of the Group by HK$56,431,000
(2022: HK$73,898,000). This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(b)

154 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank borrowings, which are
subject to floating interest rate. Details of bank borrowings
Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

have been disclosed in note 21.

At 31 December 2023, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings for the year would have been
HK$67,766,000 (2022: HK$70,748,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The exposures to these credit risks
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis by established
credit policies and procedures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

©)

Credit risk (continued)

Term deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
mainly deposited in various financial institutions, which
management believes are of high quality. Management
does not expect any loss from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
(i) individually after taking into account of the credit
enhancement or (i) using a provision matrix. The forms
of credit insurance are considered integral part of trade
receivables and considered in the calculation of ECLs.
At 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables
amounting to HK$378,785,000 are covered by forms of
credit insurance. These credit enhancements obtained
by the Group resulted in a decrease in the ECLs of
HK$378,785,000 as at 31 December 2023. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
significantly different loss patterns in different geographical
locations, the loss allowance based on past due status is
further distinguished by geographical locations.

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continuec) 3.1 BIREKEE &)
()  Credit risk (continuea) © 1EERR#)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s TRREBEBAEERE S
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables EWRIBAEREERR X
collectively based on provision matrix: BHEEBEMER (BE
B ERE) :
2023
—Z=-=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
FEHEEEZY IREAE EiEEE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
North Asia bl
Current (not past due) BUER (KR Hg) * 9,711,729 -
1-90 days past due #EI1 Z£90H 0.13% 945,176 1,236
More than 90 days past due  # 3% 7A90H 72.61% 845,415 613,814
11,502,320 615,050
Southeast Asia RED
Current (not past due) BIER (R H8) * 2,166,424 66
1-90 days past due #HI1ZE90H 0.16% 1,138,656 1,855
More than 90 days past due 1 H§ % 790 H 53.93% 163,552 88,199
3,468,632 90,120
Total B 14,970,952 705,170
* expected loss rate is immaterial * TEHEELLERE /N
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() Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

31 B EREE &)

()

SERKR (&)

2022
—T-_F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
EHEBLEEY% Rz EBEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
North Asia bl

Current (not past due) BIER (K@ H) * 8,169,171 -
1-90 days past due #HI1E90H 0.09% 1,188,763 1,099
More than 90 days past due %1 H8 % 700 H 53.01% 1,264,865 670,496
10,622,799 671,595

Southeast Asia KRB
Current (not past due) BOER (R H) 0.02% 2,149,993 348
1-90 days past due # A =00H 0.61% 913,381 5,568
More than 90 days past due %1 H3% 790H 59.91% 154,686 92,670
3,218,060 98,586
Total Pkt 13,840,859 770,181

*

expected loss rate is immaterial

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

©)

158 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Credit risk (continued)
Movements of the loss allowance for trade receivables are

BHRREERATVE

(%)

31 B EREE &)

()

SERKR (&)

B 51 R S R

as follows: ER N
2023 2022
—ED=5F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
At 1 January R—A—H 770,181 805,832
Amounts written off EMiE e (64,921) (60,041)
Provision recognised during the year RFERNEREEE 17,926 89,579
Exchange difference lE N Z5 (18,016) (65,189)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 705,170 770,181
Liquidity risk o REBMEER

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and
cash and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows. The table below analyses the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date.
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(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)
(d)  Liquidity risk (continuea)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE - - =F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

BHRREERATVE

(%)

31 B EREE &)
o REERR (B)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ENRERRAERY
Less than 1
oron Between 1 and Between 2 and
Total demand year 2 years 5 years After 5 years
2% -FRAREX -BZF ZREfE BBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T T
At 31 December 2023 R=-B==%
t=A=t-H
Borrowings EE 8,472,954 8,472,954 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 360,271 139,437 83,603 131,834 5,397
Trade and other payables & 5 R E i fE 7R 16,962,819 16,962,819 - - -
Other financidl liabiities ~ Eft & REE 668,628 668,628 - - -
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z%
+ZA=1+-H
Borrowings - 8,716,395 7,211,824 1,504,571 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 239,348 114,185 73,508 44,605 7,050
Trade and other payables % 5 2t 7& T 308 14,116,329 14,116,329 - - -
Other financial liabiities ~ Eft & B & & 3,708,334 3,708,334 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
assets. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings excluding
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2023:

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.2

EXEBERE

AEBEEREAZBNRERAK
SEBERNIFEZE UAKRRE
A EE O RN RS R Rl
s ARBERREELARBIUR
EERKA -

RERBIHBREARE A&HE
FEHERNTRRZRESEHR
AR EEE AR BHITH R K
EERIE-

AEERERFHE MBEELX
ERER - Z L TREHFER
NREEE - BB FRZEE
E(reREgEag)RRe kB

FTERARARER =% =
ToAST-BZAREHE:

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E-= —E -

+=ZB=+—-H +=-—A=+—8H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBT FET

Total borrowings (Note 21) BIEE (Mi21) 8,103,976 8,422,683
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 13) B IRE RIRITRER (HiF13) (3,325,140) (3,828,930)
Net debt Bi% 55 4,778,836 4,593,753
Total assets BEE 35,020,347 34,766,606
Net debt/total assets ratio B R EEL R 0.14 0.13
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

M

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement’. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data is not
available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.3 D EMGE (&)

()

ARFEFEZEHIEA

(%)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-BR E_ER = k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAEL FAEL FAEL
At 31 December 2023 RZ-ZE=-=#
T=A=t-~H
Assets BE
Listed and unlisted securities £ & 3F E &% 181,956 - 580,892 762,848
Other financial assets HpemEE - 8,715 - 8,715
Liabilities =X
Derivative financial liabilities ~ $TAS B EE - (12,815) - (12,815)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE=Z
+TZA=+-H
Assets BE
Listed and unlisted securiies 77 & 3F i &5 178,500 - 627,222 805,722
Other financial assets Hih S pEE - 227,986 - 227,986
Liabilities =X
Derivative financial liabiltes ~ $T4£ 4RI A & - (37,878) - (37,878)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy.

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of forward contracts in Level 2 is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used
is derived from the relevant government yield curve as at
the end of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i

(i)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements (continued)

The fair value of other financial assets is the estimated
amount that the Group would realise, taking into
account the interest rates and credit worthiness of the
counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Approximate 65% (2022: 66%) of the Group’s unlisted
securities are related to healthcare sector. The rest are
related to various sectors including telecommunication
and e-commerce, etc. No dividend were received on
those investments during the year (2022: nil).

The fair value of these unlisted securities are determined
using adjusted net asset value. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the underlying
assets’ values. As at 31 December 2023, it is estimated
that with other variables held constant an increase/
(decrease) in 5% of underlying assets’ values would
have increased/(decreased) the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings by HK$29,045,000 (2022:
HK$31,361,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(iii)

(iv)

164 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.3 D EMGE (&)

(if)

BREFS=—ERAVEFE
ZEFR ()
EN-F-ZERATEHE
EHREBHOT

2023 2022
—E-=5F —ZE -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Unlisted securities: FEMES:
At 1 January mn—H—H 627,222 606,724
Additions NE 10,250 5,731
Realisations #HIR (26,907) (33,345)
Net (loss)/gain recognised in profit or loss G RARIBIHER 2 F
during the year (B518) ks (28,750) 51,304
Exchange difference PE N A% (923) (3,192
At 31 December R+t-—A=+—H 580,892 627,222

Net (loss)/gains arising from the remeasurement of the
Group’s unlisted securities are presented in the “Other
gains, net” line item in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

(continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

To manage its working capital, the Group pledged certain of
its term deposits and structured deposits (collectively “Pledged
Assets”) to banks for issuance of letter of credits and bank
acceptance bills (collectively “Secured Obligations”). The
respective Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations have the
same maturity date with maturity period not more than 1 year,
and some of which meet the criteria for offsetting under the
prevailing accounting standards such that they are offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations as at 31

December 2023:

At 31 December 2023

BHRREERATVE

(%)
A RHEEMEEHEESHME
==

&

RERREZEES AEEKHE
ETEBMEARREBEER (5
BMICEREE)EMTRT
NEZHERERBITELER (8
BIEEARER]) HBECDER
EEMBEAEBEBERRNE
B RHEMEMRAEEIF HP
MOFAERTEAEL 2 EHFR
HEOEREEMBEMRRERA TR
HE- TR _T_=F+_A
St BEWMDEREERBRA
R AE B 47

R-ZBZ=Z%#+ZRA=+t—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

BE HHSEE FEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

Pledged Assets EEREE 11,808,067 11,189,521 618,546

Secured Obligations BHRBEL (11,845,334) (11,189,521) (655,813)
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-——#+-_H=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

1Es HiHeHE Peck:

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT FET

Pledged Assets EEREE 16,800,998 13,448,495 3,352,503

Secured Obligations BHRHER (17,118,951) (13,448,495) (3,670,456)

The Group included the net amount of Pledged Assets in
“other financial assets” and net amount of Secured Obligations
in “other financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

166 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-down
of inventories is recorded to the extent where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-down requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-down of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss of trade
receivables.

The measurement of loss allowance of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the expected credit
loss in the period in which such estimates are changed.

Annual Report 2023

4. GEHEET R A&

(a)

fE =t 7 & iR
FE

AEBERBFEAERE ZFHG
WﬂﬁEET“ﬁ@ﬁ i 1 3R

EAUER

,,,,, BrRAEMBRTRREER S
w&m/x@ A& Ak &R S
ﬁﬁ}dﬂﬂaﬂﬂ%°

B Al R 7B E A A B R A R o A
BERENRRAEMGBT AAERE
BRFEZRGFTLRAZFHEZ
FEREENRTEHOR -

CREE L LS
B 1w

ZlS‘EI?;zE”@%E*EE NE 5 EW
REEEFEPRAGEERE
Z%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁz%ﬂﬁﬁ@)ﬁﬁa%ﬁ

QR

.#E'“”%fuﬁl XIEH B REEBA
B A B K fh ET o TR H A B R
REMF AEBEZERTEZ
HEHREHEE B HE WK
AEEELREHEEBE-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Property, Plant and Equipment 5. MI¥ - -HWERRZRE

Buildings
Leasehold  held for own Assets
properties and use carried Furniture and Office Motor under Right of
improvements at cost fixtures equipment Computers  vehicles construction use assets Total

RENE  BAFIIEN

REE BEERRT BARKE BOERE Bl nE EREE GRERE 3
HK$'000 HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TiER TR TEr  TET  TEr  TEx T TRT  TEx

Year ended 31 December 2022~ HE-T-—#+-A=+-H

IFE
Opening net book amount FNEAFE 5,503 376,424 30,716 5410 21473 3429 n 236,725 680,397
Additions RE 2,465 309,841 2,630 3,764 17,869 409 3,289 119,730 459,997
Transfer E3c - - 3777 - 114 - (3,891) - -
Disposals and derecognition HERKILER - - (22) - (341) (54) - (68,677)  (69,004)
Depreciation it (2,874) (17,587) (9,909) (2,559) (10,565) (1,492) - (93,124)  (138,110)
Exchenge difference E32E (049) 4,604 (1,685) @9 (1,125 296) B (165%) (15667
Closing net book amount FREDFHE 4,845 673,282 25,507 6,286 27,425 1,99 64 178,118 917,523
As at 31 December 2022 RZZ-=f+-A=+—-H
Cost A 13,789 773,077 55,499 21,029 62,005 12,189 64 322,195 1,259,847
Accumulated depreciation 2T 8944) 09795 (2999 (14743  (3580)  (10,193) S(A0T) (342324)
Net book amount FEFE 4,845 673,282 25,607 6,286 27,425 1,996 64 178,118 917,623
Year ended 31 December 2028~ BE-F-=F+-A=1+—H
IFE
Opening net book amount FOEAFE 4,845 673,282 25,507 6,286 27,425 1,996 64 178,118 917,523
Additions "E 3,522 491 4,538 2915 7,090 3,820 16,446 104,415 143,237
Transfer o - (295,393) 333 - - - 295,060 - -
Disposals and derecognition HERREER - (1,589) ) (467) 82 - - (22,439)  (24,589)
Depreciation & (2,209 (20200) (10349  (2787)  (10.810) 71) - (6815 (114130)
Exchange difference EyZE ) (18774) ) @) (191) 8 7471 (1189 (12630)
Closing net book amount FREDFH 6,153 337,721 20,115 5,906 23,432 4,953 319,041 192,090 909,417
As at 31 December 2023 WZZZZF+-A=+-H
Cost A 15,214 446,099 60,119 13,831 59,487 14,807 319,041 320,262 1,248,860
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (©061) (108372 (40004 (7,925 (36055  (9,854) - (12817)  (339,443)
Net book amount FHFE 6,153 337,727 20,115 5,906 23,432 4,953 319,041 192,090 909,417
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

H = 5] 2 .
5. Property, Plant and Equipment continued 5. MI¥ -BERRZRE =
The analysis of the net book value of leased assets by class of EHBEERNPENEEEEMIR
underlying asset is as follows. All of the leased assets are carried at HFEI>MOT -FBHEEESKT
depreciated cost. EXARFGER -
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—ED=5F —F-—
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Buildings held for own use FIEE AMESF () 337,727 673,282
Leasehold properties for own use FIEERNEEDE (ii) 191,516 177,822
Plant, machinery and equipment L ERE TP g (i) 574 296
529,817 851,400
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit HRETPREIANEEEENERE
or loss is as follows: BEafTaT:
2023 2022
—EBET=HF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of buildings held for own use #{EEBMEFHITEE A 20,290 17,587
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FRAEEENTEER:
Leasehold properties for own use BIEERMBEEDE 66,653 93,014
Plant, machinery and equipment ERE T Y & 162 110
87,105 110,711
Interest on lease liabilities (note 25) HEBEF S (Hites5) 2,803 2,772
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

Property, Plant and Equipment continueq

During the year ended 31 December 2023, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$104,415,000 (2022: HK$119,730,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
renewal or new tenancy agreements.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 20.
Cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2023 are
related to lease rentals paid which are within financing cash flows as
set out in note 30(b).

)

(i

)

Buildings held for own use

The Group leases several buildings for a period of 30 to 50
years. None of the leases include variable lease payments.

Leasehold properties for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as
its premises and warehouses through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years. Some leases include an option to renew when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Other leases

The Group leases office equipment under leases expiring from
one to twelve years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Sub-leases as a lessor

The Group sub-leased certain leasehold properties for
2-4 years during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
classified these sub-leases as finance leases as these
sub-leases are for the whole of the remaining term of the
head-leases. The undiscounted annual lease payments
ranges from HK$20,858,000 to HK$71,916,000 (2022:
HK$91,000 to HK$47,466,000) each year during the sub-
lease period. The total discounted lease receivables amounted
to HK$190,507,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$92,160,000).

ME- -BERSZE®

BHE—_Z_=%+-_A=+—H1t#
E-FREEERNI04,415,000% T
(ZZ — — 4% :119,730,000 L) ° %
CHEICHBEEAIFTREREE
NHERECHEENRER-

HEAENIBALSMARBHIRK
HooeHE_ETE-_=F+=-A=4+—
ALFE AEMNRSREERT AR
ERenEmENHEREER  HE
FI R M FE30(b) o

(i) HFEBRHNEF

AREFEHEETEF HEHA
30E50F I ERERFEAEMA
SRR

m)%ﬁéﬁm$%%¥
7% B B A 3B O 1 3 2 15 0
Em%%mﬁ%%&“%WMW
HEH—BROS P FE=F-
9 8 B 15 B 15 TS IR
ﬁ&%ﬂﬁ B0 3% 12 1 o B M
FOETBAENHL -

(i) HMiE=E
FEBBEREAERLZHE
EHA—FE+-F-BHMLOE
%E@ﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁ%éﬁﬂm
BwERRE -BEAERETE
MEMK-

(iv) 238 (FEAEHHEAN)
AEBREBEE-_T-_=+=-A
T+ BLEFEERSBEARTHE
EME_ZNF T HEZESH
DEABREMRE HITENZSE
\%ﬁﬁﬁ%iiﬁﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁ}%¥1
HER-AUBBEFEAEN IR
%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%iu?%,%s,ooo%
JTLE71,916,0008 T (T = =
4 191,000 JL £47,466,000/%8

) RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—

CEMRENHEERELAE A
190,507,000/375(_2::
92,160,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2= — & —

6. Intangible assets

=+ -A=t+—HIFE

6. EBFEE

Goodwill Software Total
[E5ES g4 et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET
Year ended 31 December 2022 BHE—T——
+=-—A=+—H”
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYRMEFRE 329,204 28,865 358,069
Addition NE - 2,448 2,448
Amortisation B 54 - (4,112) (4,112
Exchange difference lE N E%E 1,748 (2,116) (368)
Closing net book amount FARREFRE 330,952 25,085 356,037
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE——
+=-—A=+—8”
Net book amount BRI F 5 330,952 25,085 356,037
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZT-=F
+=ZB=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 330,952 25,085 356,037
Amortisation o - (3,919) (3,919)
Exchange difference ERER 3,143 (611) 2,532
Closing net book amount FRIREFEE 334,095 20,555 354,650
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZEZ=F
+t=RA=+—-H
Net book amount BREFER 334,095 20,555 354,650

The amortisation charge of software for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE - - =F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Intangible assets (ontinueq

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs") to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of
assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Similar key
assumptions are used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs which include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections is 0% (2022: 0%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate as at 31 December 2023 of 10.3% (2022:
8.8%) was applied in determining the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs. The discount rate used reflect the risk-free rate and
the premium for specific risks relating to the business units to
which the CGUs relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

BEEE»

EokmBEc8MReELEM ([R
TEAEMDz2AKRE S RIZERE
B EZET - RRERMNETZRES
REBATDRERRBRER TR 2K
ERUCBEET SHARSELEN
HEEREERAZEUIZ2RRE
&

(a) ReRERBERKLEXEALT
FEBBER -

by BERAEDREED ZEA K
HBFEREOR (T - —F:
0%) e

c) RZE-Z=F+=-_A=+—8H
ZHBFBATERR R 510.3% (=&
ZZF:88%) DHARETH
TEEBM2ARESRE A
AR ERMEBERRAE KR
CEEAEMNEBXEBENZEE
[ B8 Vg 1B o

BERTEBRRERZEEBEREERE
HEMBMRERKBE 2 E DIRE
MANERZRIR B AERIR (E L 8E) X
HEMBER2EREL -

AEEEEBREE MEAZLAETE
BRAEETANASEAEHELEZED  TK
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RBARIZRE
R-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HzxXE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are

as follows: WBAR ZHBOT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
AL EEEEAL
8 B2 TEEBREEHH BRTRA/EMERFES Ef &
(hit)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the British 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% -
Islands Virgin Islands
VST Group Limited EBRAES NEBRaHBNFRAER  RERAEIETZEAR 100% -
Shenzhen VST Grand Electronic Co.,  PRC Distribution of IT products in the RMB100,000,000 100% -
Ltd. PRC
FNBEEEEFHERAA i WA E 2 A AR RE R AR 100,000,000 100% -
VSTECS (HK) Limited Hong Kong Distribution of IT products in Hong 2 ordinary shares - 100%
Kong
BLEER(FE)ERRA 5E REEDHEANRER MREBK - 100%
62,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares
62,000,000 & 1% Z IR AR 0
Chong Qing VST Grand Technology ~ PRC Distribution of IT products in the US$20,000,000 - 100%
Development Co., Ltd PRC
BERRETANBERERAA e NPEDHEAMRER 20,000,000 7T - 100%
ECS Technology (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, provider of 11,500,000 ordinary shares - 100%
IT products and services for IT
infrastructure in Hong Kong
AR (R E)ERRA B WREBREREERUREAM  11,500,0000 & Bk - 100%
REmMREEMBRERRER
BHES
ECS Technology (HK) Co., Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 10 ordinary shares - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Hong Kong
BREARRARAF B REBREEAMBERNEN 10RERR - 100%
RHR R R RS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are

as follows: (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
—=F+-A=t—HBItFE

7. RBARIZRE =

=+ _A=+—RZEE

MEARZFERBEMT: (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEEREAL
A1 B2 TEEBREE Y BRTRE/EMERFE B M
(Ht)
ECS Computers (HK) Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 1 ordinary share - 100%
services for T infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EAEK (FE)ERRA B REBRBEANMBERRER 1REBR - 100%
RIERR RS
VSTECS (Chongqing) Technology Co,  PRC Electronic settlement business US$130,000,000 - 100%
Ltd centre and provider of IT
products and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
BEER (EE)MEERAH e TEEFEEHETOREMR  130,000,000% 7T - 100%
BEm R AR R AR RIER
BHER
VSTECS (Shanghai) Technology Co.,  PRC Provision of IT products and RMB174,380,000 - 100%
Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
TREEEAMBEERAT I RPEREEAMBERRER  ARK174,380,0007 - 100%
BRI AR RERY
ECS China Technology (Shanghai) Co., PRC Provision of IT products and RMB124,151,500 - 100%
Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
EARE (LB ERAR HE NP EREEAMBRERRER  ARK124,1561,5007 - 100%
BHE E MR R
ECS Technology (Guangzhou) PRC Provision of T products and RMB82,786,600 - 100%
Company Limited services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BMEAMEERAF HhE RPEREEANRERREN  ARES82,786,6007T - 100%

B AR RIERY
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZ - T -=F+-A=+—HItFE

. . " " . /-\ m
7. Investments in Subsidiaries ontineq 7. RHBRARZRE »)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are RZEZ=F+-_A=+—HZxEZE
as follows: (continued) MEBARZFHBHET: (&)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEEREAL
A’ B33t B TEEBREE Y BRITRE/EMERFE B M
(Ht)
ECS Chongging Chuangying PRC Provision of IT products and RMB300,000,000 - 100%
Technology Co., Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BREREIRMEERAT HE RPEREEANRERREM  AKRHK300,000,0007T - 100%
RIERR RS
VES Supply Chains (Chong Qing) PRC Provision of supply chains RMB30,000,000 - 100%
Management Co., Ltd management and warehouse
transport services in PRC
BERREBHERERERAA HEl RPBRMEHEREE AHE  AR30,000000T - 100%
BWERS
FIMERTHREERA PRC Project holding in the PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%
RITERBEREERA HE RPEREEEHE AR #3,000,0007T - 100%
VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ Singapore Investment holding and 446,036,800 ordinary shares 100% -

distribution of IT products,
provision of IT services and
enterprise systems in Singapore

VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ #f i3 RETIE R EREER HHE 446,036,800 & @k 100% -
MBHRE R REEARER
BREXESR

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd Singapore Provision of IT products and 13,600,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd il R REEMREERRE 13,600,000 FREEIHME T L - 100%
AR AR RS LR

Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products and 5,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

Exeed Pte Ltd HOE REIE D AR ERRYE 5,000,000 &REE1F IR T2 - 100%
ZEAMBRAW FERS il
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2 —T— =

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are

as follows: (continued)

=
=

FHoA=t-ALFE

BARZKRE »

2=+ ZA=F+—HBZFE
WEB AR ZFFIBWT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
FMRkL/ FEEREAL
A1 BRIt B TEERRLE Y RORE/SMERFEE B 5k
(Ht)
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products in 2,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
Singapore each and 24,785 ordinary shares
of US$1.8156 each
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd BN RETIE D HE AR ER 2,000,000 BB E 1T MK T2 - 100%
LB 24,7850 SRR E1.8156
ETZERR
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd Singapore Investment holding in Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd HINR RETIE R EREZR R BREERINE T2 LR - 100%
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distribution of IT products in 100,000 ordinary shares of US$1 - 100%
Indonesia each and 5,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rp13,000 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya Ell REEDHEMBRER 100,000 B#REEIE T @R - 100%
5,000,000 & f 1 {E113,000E)
fRE 2 Lk
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand Provision of IT products and 21,500,000 shares of 10 Baht each - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd RE REEREENNEERRER 21,500,000 8 REE10R% 2 - 100%
RHR AR R R &1n
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd Myanmar Provision of marketing research 300,000 shares of US$1 each - 100%
and IT services in Myanmar
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd e REBRETSEBRAREN 300,000 GREEIET KRR - 100%
RHER T
EREAEESEREARAR China Provision of cloud services inthe  RMB3,000,000 - 100%
PRC
TREREEYBREER HE R EREERSE AR #3,000,0007T - 100%
Note: Hfat

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established
in the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BN BERSZ 2 ME AR RINEBEEREN
EMBARERERAEMERAT

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

8. Interests in Associates 8. MEtZENTIHES
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Unlisted LT
Share of net assets PIEFEE 334,752 321,954
Loan to an associate BB ENAINER 3,516 3,515
338,268 325,469
Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIMbE EH
Share of net assets DIFEEE 385,238 350,954
723,506 676,423
Market value of listed shares EHERHOTE 358,533 318,394
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BRYBE RN NERLNETTE T A
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. EEA - 2BERBEBHTER -—FAK
@ °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

Interests in Associates (ontinueq)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

=

PR M (F)
=F+=A=t-BLEE

8. REBEELNTNER »

>
i

=R

=

—TE =+ A=+—HzZHE
AIFFBMT :

Country of
incorporation/
Name establishment Principal activities Particulars of issued shares  Equity interest held by the Group
g HMRY/ RIBR FEEK BRTRMFEE AEEE 2 RHE
2023 2022
—E-=HE —E-F
VSTECS Phils. Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary shares of 49.99% 49.99%
Peso 100 each
VSTECS Phils. Inc. FRE NHEARRER 3,097,055 SR EE 49.99% 49.99%
100 R 2 E ik
VSTECS Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 357,001,400 ordinary shares 44.81% 43.18%
technology and services of RM0.5 each
for IT infrastructure
in Malaysia
VSTECS Berhad ERAR AERETEMBEER 357,001,400 BREE 44.81% 43.18%
REB AR KRB 05 E 2 EEK
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. g BB RS 196,000/ & R E & 49% 49%
1005 2 k15
APAL Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Aviation leasing 1,0566,000,000 ordinary shares 28.41% 28.41%
of US$0.1 each
APALFE R AR A A HERS REgEE 1,056,000,000/% & iR E & 28.41% 28.41%

01X EBK
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2= — & —

SEFZASt—RILER

8. Interests in Associates continueq)

None of the associates were considered individually material to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the

8. REBEELNTNER »

B B2 N R E R M
EEEKXN-%

EWRBEREAE
EHiRA BB WmR AT E

consolidated financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate BNAZBER éé BEREXHE K&
financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as EoEazEHeE 285K ER
follows: PURNE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit from continuing operations FELE RN 75,028 14,633
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wk A (10,647) (42,425)
Total comprehensive income M ALREE 64,381 (27,792)
9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELENRER
2023 2022
—E-=F —Eg=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Share of net assets DIEFEE - 7,873
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2023 are as follows: T _ZFF+_A=F+—Hz&EE

w=
EEFBEOT:

Country of Particulars of registered
Name establishment Principal activities and paid-in capital Equity interest held by the Group
£ A TEEH AMRELERFE AEBEFE R
2023 2022
—E-=F —E--F
Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of
smartphones and computer
peripheral product
EMHEBESE s HE EERHESH AR #155,000,0007T 38.03% 38.03%

21N

FRATKABRER
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10.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Interest in a Joint Venture continueq) 9.

Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered
material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of this

REELENER o

EMTEBEEMRERRAR/ESE
B2EEXK s E-——HEELE I
BELSHAEEBEN - NEEDHZ

joint venture is as follows: EEDLEZHBERNAT
2023 2022
—ED=5F =~
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss from continuing operations FELE B (7,918) (2,628)
Other comprehensive income E2EIA 45 (832)
Total comprehensive income FHERALEE (7,873) (3,460)
. =
Trade and Other Receivables 10. EZ RHEMEWKIE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables, net B S WA SRR 14,645,567 13,070,678
Other receivables and prepayments b FE YR IB R TR R IE 2,166,332 1,260,367
Deferred expenses EIEF S 12,822 8,229
16,824,721 14,339,274
Less: Non-current deferred expenses B IEREIRE (1,557) (991)
16,823,164 14,338,283
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

E

=+ -A=t+—HIFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables continue)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is

10, EGZREMEWRFEIE 2

AEBERTFEF=ZNTEPZEEHNF7
E150R MEEEFPZEEHARTF
WERAEBZRFERNRLELE
R-BEZRUFAFELZEZAHE D

as follows: ZHRESTWOT

2023 2022

—E-=4F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
0 - 30 days 0%230H 6,649,466 6,453,966
31 - 60 days 31260H 3,703,137 2,864,349
61— 90 days 61290H 1,528,500 1,318,735
Over 90 days HE0H 2,764,464 2,438,628
14,645,567 13,070,678

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were

BHREMBERAEREEATIE

denominated in the following currencies: R

2023 2022

—E-=4F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
HK$ BT 17,764 14,297
RMB AR 12,316,306 10,451,034
uss$ E7T 601,588 501,666
S$ o 810,367 666,064
THB g7/ 1,895,385 1,618,695
RP ENfeE 1,181,754 1,086,527
16,823,164 14,338,283
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10.

11.

Trade and Other Receivables contined)

Except for the lease receivables of HK$118,591,000 (2022:
HK$47,466,000) included in other receivables and prepayments which
is expected to be recovered more than one year, the trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10, EGZREMEWRFEIE 2

BRat AEMEKRZERBNRER
MEHBE —FhozEEKEER
TH118,591,0008 . (=& = = F :

47,466,000 7T ) 5 -

B REMER

RBEMR —FRAUBEHER R -

Other financial assets 1. HhEmEE
2023 2022
—=== —E-C
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{hE=s FBT T T
Current TE
Financial assets measured at FVPL HRFEIAEw K
HEZEHEE
— Unlisted investments —JEEWIRE 728,452 729,276
— Listed equity securities — ERAEF 34,396 76,446
— Other financial assets —EMemEE 8,715 227,986
771,563 1,033,708
Financial assets measured at HEHERA T EZ
amortised cost THEE
— Pledged assets —RKREE (i) 618,546 3,352,503
— Unlisted debt securities —FELENEBHES () 38,000 16,000
656,546 3,368,503
1,428,109 4,402,211

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

11. Other financial assets (continued) 11.

Notes:

(i) The debt securities of HK$20,000,000 and HK$18,000,000 bear
interest at 10% per annum and will be matured in 2024 and 2025
respectively (2022: the debt securities bore interest at 8% per
annum and were matured during the year).

(i) The balance mainly represented the letter of credit of NIL (2022:
HK$2,904,100,000) pledged for issuance of export loans and terms
deposits of HK$618,546,000 (2022: HK$448,403,000) pledged for
issuance of bank acceptance bills (note 3.4).

The carrying amounts of other financial assets were denominated in the
following currencies:

Hhe@mEE »

g

0

(i)

20,000,0003% 7t %.18,000,0007% 7T 2 &
EEFIRERNTI0%:T 8 LD BIR
CENFER-FAFHH(ZF
T oF EREFRTE R RS% B
FERFAREIE) -

BREITBAERAF ZEAFAZT(Z
T~ — 4 :2,904,100,000/8 7T) * Ty
ERBITHOBERZIEM UK EH
17 7618,546,00008 7TC (—Z T = —
448,403,000 7t ) * JY{E BEATIRT
AR ZEA (FI5E3.4)

HtemEEZREEBESIAATERFE:

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT F#&T
HK$ BT 175,302 131,312
RMB AR 665,081 3,656,647
uss$ ETT 587,726 614,252
1,428,109 4,402,211
. A
12. Inventories 12. &€
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale REHREEFBEFE 10,286,085 9,227,130
Inventories-in-transit EERFE 1,022,590 845,155
11,308,675 10,072,285

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is
shown in note 24.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE
-
13. Cash and Bank Balances 13. RERBITHEER
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEBAS 3,037,906 3,178,295
Deposits with banks RITIE 287,234 650,635
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated 4R& BI#EikiR XA 2
statement of financial position Re RIRITHESR 3,325,140 3,828,930
Less: Restricted bank balances (Note) W LR EIRITEERR (HAE) (676,449) (583,300)
Cash and cash equivalents in the BERERERRANZ
consolidated cash flow statement HekReEEY 2,648,691 3,245,630

Note: Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks to secure
issuance of letter of credits.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances were denominated

REHERBZFR

R HIRITER BTN RITIAE

RehRTHEGREEENR T EE

in the following currencies: B
2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
HKS$ BT 20,224 85,543
RMB (Note) AR (H:F) 2,581,150 3,236,434
us$ ETT 409,577 203,858
S$ T 118,443 176,943
THB e 75,157 15,538
RP EUEE 120,589 110,614
3,325,140 3,828,930
Note: Kiat -
The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are AEBNUAREFEZRITESRRTFRIF

deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to prevailing rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.

MRHREZRIT- RERZEUARBHEZ
BRRIINEREEDE LD BRAETPEK
Fi3 BT AR 2 BRATIME B AR Bl R AR 1 -

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

14. Share Capital

14, A

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: JERE
2,000,000,000 (2022: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0000% (== ==
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,0004% ) & I &
0.1 L Z & imAR 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EBRITLMREETER:
2023 2022
—E-=F —T-CF
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREEIETZ BREBCIET
EETERREA HE BETEZBRRIA HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TiEx
At1 January ®—HA—H 1,450,917,988 145,092 1,4565,171,998 145,617
Repurchase of own shares (Note (a)  BEEIAF I (M) (14,028,000) (1,403) (4,254,000) (425)
At 31 December RT=A=+-R 1,436,889,998 143,689 1450917998 145,002

184 vSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023



For the year ended 31 December 2023 2 — & —

14. Share Capltal (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Repurchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M (F)
=F+=A=t+-RitF

=3
s

14. R (#)

g

@)

BOAH RN

REBET_=F+_A=+—H1
FE-AQRARBIAMELREERS R
T

Highest price Lowest price Aggregated
No. of shares per share per share price
Month of repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
BEz BRESERK BRBKER BER
BE 2 AH ROER (&) (&) (&)
June 2023 —E-=FXA 1,040,000 4.09 3.94 4,160,660
July 2023 —E-=F+tA 904,000 3.96 3.85 3,528,720
August 2023 —E-=F)N\A 1,402,000 4.00 3.87 5,553,400
September 2023 —E-=FNA 3,350,000 4.27 4.08 13,976,980
October 2023 ZEZ=F+A 4,408,000 4.20 3.91 17,747,840
November 2023 —E-=F+—A 1,100,000 3.98 3.79 4,261,560
December 2023 —E-_=F+=-A1 1,824,000 3.99 3.68 7,037,160
14,028,000 56,266,320
The repurchased shares during the year ended 31 December 2023 REBEZE_T—_=F+_A=+—H1L
were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the FEZERBRBRERGERE BEAA
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. AlZEBITRAEINKRZERMDZE
Eo
Deferred shares (o) EERD
The Company acquired, through trusts setup specifically for purpose REBEE-_ZE=_="F+=-A=+—H
of employment compensation, a total of 4,626,000 ordinary shares EFE ARAEBRENAERME
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: M ZEARARAMES EBAS X
5,714,000) from the open market for a total cash consideration 4,626,0008% ( — = = = 4 : 5,714,000
of approximately HK$18,746,000 (2022: HK$34,965,000). These BORAQBR TR RERERLTLH
shares would be used primarily for providing employment/executive 18,746,000 T (=& = = & :
compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition of shares were 34,965,000/ 70) cZER MK EE A
recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated statement RIBHRAEE ZERE TTEREE U
of changes in equity. R 2R ARG EERZ R B
EREE] AR
During the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,805,000 deferred RBEZZT__F+=ZA=+—
shares with a total value of approximately HK$5,594,000 were HIEFE - #81{E45,594,000% T 2
vested and transferred to all eligible employees. 1,805,0000% i (& B 17 B 55 B 0 i %
THBEEWRER-
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share ) HNEREETHEEABNREERR

of the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

@

186 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the new share option
scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company. The subscription price is determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares;
(i) the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The vesting period of
the options from the date of grant is determined by the Directors
and the options are then exercisable within a period of ten years
including the vesting period, if any. Each share option gives
the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

No share options were granted under the New Scheme during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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16. Reserves of the Company

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2 —T— =

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

16. A RQ AR E

AEBHA

HREEKED

F+-A=+—HILFE

ZEFEMR

FREBHFRERNGERZEZDR
ReARNEMERERAKE D E AT KB

the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning TEEZ2FNRFRES 2 FBH T
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below: W
Capital
Share  redemption Capital Deferred  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BROEE ERABRRE ERfE EERE 2HEE Ft ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TAL TEL TET TEL
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Het) (Ht) (Het) (Het)
Balance at 1 January 2022 RoT--F-f-B2f% 884868 8,707 799 99954  (508,650) 085,770
Profit and total comprehensive FREFHREZERALE
income for the year - - - N 445,960 445,960
Dividend paid BABE - - - - (392,896)  (392,89)
Deferred share purchased BERERLERN - - - (26,886) - (26,886)
Vesting of deferred shares ERROHER - - - 5,594 - 5,594
Repurchases of own shares BEAHRAH
~ Premium paid -BEE - - - - (21,816) (21,816)
— Transfer between Reserves - FEEEE - 425 - - (425) -
Balance as at 31 December 2022~ WZZ-_—F+-A=+—H
2 884,868 9,132 799 (121246)  (477.827) 295,726
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZBZ=F—-A-Bz# 884,868 9,132 799 (121,246) (477,827 295,726
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREERALE
income for the year - - - - 357,746 357,746
Dividend paid BARE - - - - (246,656)  (246,656)
Deferred share purchased EREELRK - - - (7,895) - (7,895)
Repurchases of own shares BEAZRH
~ Premium paid -BEE - - - - (54,864) (54,864)
— Transfer between Reserves -FERER - 1,403 - - (1,409) -
Balance as at 31 December 2023  H-Z-=%+-A=1+—-H
iR 884,868 10,535 799 (129,141) (423,004) 344,057
Note: Wit
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the FARBsLEREN FREAERED
nature and purpose of reserves. WERMIEE -
muagxppamasn —T--s5% 187



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract
Liabilities

17 EFRHEMENFERS
HEaE

2023 2022

—R-=5F g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables 2 5 B FIE 15,562,115 13,126,934
Other payables and accruals 0 FE AT FRIB SR FE AT S IE 1,400,704 989,395
16,962,819 14,116,329
2023 2022

—EB-=5F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities EHEE 559,144 451,720
Less: non-current portion R FERNERES 9 (1,184) (2,379)
557,960 449,341

(@  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

AEEZHEFRAAEEREZ
ZEEHN FI30E90H - & 5 EN
RERBEZAHE D ZEE® YN
mE

2023 2022

—E2-= —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
0 - 60 days 0Z260H 14,280,324 12,290,481
Over 60 days HiB60H 1,281,791 836,453
15,562,115 13,126,934

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were
denominated in the following currencies:

B REMEAREREENT
5 55 1 318

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

HK$ BT 23,826 26,692

RMB AR 12,053,345 9,355,786

uss$ e 3,024,227 2,771,535

S$ #Thn3E T 610,559 547,802

THB ek 479,948 611,163

RP ENEfE 770,914 803,351

16,962,819 14,116,329
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract
Liabilities (continued)

(c)  Contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments received from
customers. Balance of HK$449,341,000 as at 1 January 2023
(2022: HK$707,975,000) was fully recognised as revenue during
the year when the customers have taken possession of and
accepted the products.

Contract liabilities of HK$560,328,000 (2022: HK$451,720,000)
were recognised mainly as a result of the prepayment received
from customers during the year ended 31 December 2023
in advance of satisfaction of performance obligation, and
HK$559,144,000 (2022: HK$449,341,000) are expected to be
fully recognised as revenue within one year.

7. EEREMENRERS
HEEBE =

(c) &HEEBEE ﬁagﬁwmm

%EH,TAI M _TE-_=ZF—F—

45 $2449,341,0008 L (=&

::¢:7o7,975,000;‘%ﬁ)5b‘6

BEFEBUEMER ZFRNEH

\I]]]

\

EERA 48 ES60,328,000%
T (ZZ = % :451,720,000/8
L) FEHRRBE_T-_=F
+ZA=+t—BLFEERETE
HEANE BT WETEN HIA

I 78 51559,144,0008 T (= &
— T4 449,341,000 T) B R

—ERNEERER W -
18. Other financial liabilities 18. Hit &M EE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Secured obligations (note 3.4) BIARER (A7:£3.4) 655,813 3,670,456
Derivative financial liabilities PTEemAas 12,815 37,878
668,628 3,708,334

The carrying amounts of other financial liabilities were denominated in

HiteMBEZREEN T EES

the following currencies: &
2023 2022
—E=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
RMB AR¥E 655,813 3,670,456
us$ EY 12,815 37,878
668,628 3,708,334
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

19. Deferred Taxation 19. IEFERLIE
The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: EREMEEE/ (BE)FE2ZHN
T
2023 2022
—E=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 129,728 138,094
(Debited)/credited to the consolidated (k) G A EBEE (Hi26)
statement of profit or loss (Note 26) (16,058) 2,482
Exchange difference fEHZ 1,249 (10,848)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 114,919 129,728
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FEBBEEAERBBEABRFRNZE
year are as follows: (RN
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-C
Deferred tax assets - Inventories and EEHEEE-FERESRER HK$’000 HK$’000
trade receivables provisions and others  FRIBEZE R H b FBT FH T
At 1 January n—A—H 166,050 182,665
Debited to the consolidated M iraEER
statement of profit or loss (15,815) (1,488)
Exchange difference PE N E%E (4,106) (15,127)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 146,129 166,050
2023 2022
—E-= —E-C
Deferred tax liabilities — Accelerated tax ELEFHEEE - MEBRERTE HK$’000 HK$'000
depreciation and others REAM FET FHT
At 1 January wn—H—H (36,322) (44,571)
(Debited)/credited to the consolidated (F0BR) /FHAGEIERER
statement of profit or loss (243) 3,970
Exchange difference PE X =% 5,355 4,279
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H (31,210) (36,322)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

20. Lease liabilities 20. fHEEE

At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZEZ=F+-A=+—H HES&
BEENATHEEHBEE:

2023 2022
—E=F —E -

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 129,375 107,841
After 1 year but within 2 years BRE—FEIAME 79,264 70,488
After 2 years but within 5 years BBMERINAEF 124,445 40,673
More than 5 years ZHREF 5,305 6,246
209,014 117,407

338,389 225,248
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were denominated in the HEBBE REMESBUTIEEE:

following currencies:
2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FHET

RMB AR 92,351 105,539
S$ T T 3,613 7,058
THB B3 228,920 104,816
RP ENEfE 13,505 7,835
338,389 225,248

EHExzREmReE —T-=—=«% 191



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2= — & —

21. Borrowings

=Ft=A=t-ALFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5E FiERT FHET
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank borrowings ERRRITEE (@ - 1,447,455
- 1,447,455
Current mE
Unsecured bank borrowings ERRRITEE (@) 8,103,976 6,972,328
Secured mortgage loan EEMIRZBER (o) - 2,900
8,103,976 6,975,228
Total borrowings mEE (© 8,103,976 8,422,683
Notes: Mt s
(@  Unsecured bank borrowings (@ EEPRITEE

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured loans of HK$655,995,000
(2022: HK$937,656,000) and HK$497,082,000 (2022:
HK$509,799,000) were repayable on 19 July 2024 and
20 September 2024 respectively. The loans were unsecured and

bore interest at rates as disclosed in section (d) below.

(b)  Secured mortgage loan

The loan is secured by buildings with net book value of
HK$121,957,000 as at 31 December 2022. The loan contained
a repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be
repaid after one year of HK$2,900,000 was classified as current

liabilities. This loan has been repaid during the year.

192 vSTECS Holdings Limited
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21. Borrowings (ontinued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. 88w

Hrat: (&)

The Group’s unsecured bank borrowings and secured mortgage (c) AEHEzEKHETEELER
loan were repayable as follows: ARBERARTIHBHESR:
2023 2022
—ED=F =~
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year or on demand —FARHIEER 8,103,976 6,975,228
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF - 1,447,455
8,103,976 8,422,683
The effective interest rates were as follows: (d) EBFERT:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRMIRITEE 2.39%-6.70% 0.37%-5.95%
Secured mortgage loan BEPIRBE K 3.31%-5.11% 1.05%-5.82%
The carrying amounts of unsecured bank borrowings and (e) EHEBWETEELEERFIRIEE

secured mortgage loan were denominated in the following

R EMLBEATIEBE -

currencies:

2023 2022
—_ET-= T

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HKS$ BT 443,000 394,300
RMB AR 5,036,588 4,619,967
us$ ET 1,887,309 2,785,556
S$ o 149,033 34,378
THB TRk 524,578 334,707
RP e & 63,468 253,775
8,103,976 8,422,683

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " ZE-=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information 22. W ko HBEFR

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

DHMEMDERAASEEZ&®ET
BEBABRFGOBRBARR D E
RORERMABER —Bz2T AR -
$%@Z%%Eﬁﬁ%@A§ﬁ%$
2Rt ME AEBEZSETHRER
ABEUTEEERZARE D BE
H2 %8

REDHENABZAETERDH
B BB D MERESZEE
Bl anEE = 5 B - Az 2RED B 2 K H b o B
NITHREM -

FAXREERERDE Mo BRAF
EARAZAISREDRBER SRR T e

performance for the year is set out below.

(a) Business segments (a) ¥ 7 &b
The business segments of the Group are as follows: REBZEBHFOT :

Segments Principal activities
PR TEEK

Consumer electronics

Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,
drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).

HEET RHEMBBREREE (BFEETRNEN  FH |EARK TaeESHFE& 3DIT

ENi% BRI -

Enterprise systems Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,
databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

EERL REAREMMEEREE CERFATA (REH BRERR  UniNTIREES

BEE N 17 ) R B AR A R MR AT AT F A e R ERT -

Cloud computing Provision of cloud computing solutions and services.
EHE RETFTEBIRTT MR -
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22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

(@)

Business segments (continuea)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

22. WKk pEEXR )

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2023 are

(a) ¥#DI )

HE-_Z-_=_F+=-RA=+—H

as follows: EFEZDREENT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEEY TERR EHE k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FTET FTET FTERT
Total segment revenue DEW B EE 30,393,688 40,413,612 3,083,996 73,891,296
Segment results DEEE 534,270 820,787 98,031 1,453,088
Fair value changes of other HhemEEY
financial assets ANTEES) (17,941)
Finance costs HHER (340,054)
1,095,093
Share of associates’ profits DG E R AR A 75,028
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIEEETEBE (7,918)
Profit before taxation PR B AR 7 1,162,203
Taxation FiIE (240,170)
Profit for the year F N 7 922,033
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 12,393,665 14,231,631 634,861 27,260,157
mugxERERas —=--—f4% 195



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

: AIEWY
22. Revenue and Segment Information coninueo 22. W ko HER @)
(@) Business segments (continued) (a) EBKDE (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are BE-_ZT-_—_F+=ZRAR=+—8H
as follows: EFEZDREENT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEET TERSR EHE B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Total segment revenue DEMEBRE 33,075,400 41,357,772 2,890,822 77,323,994
Segment restlts GEIES 477,043 758,083 103262 1,338,388
Fair value changes of other HhemEEL
financial assets NTEES) (10,120)
Finance costs HHER (258,490
1,069,778
Share of associates’ profits DREEE R AR A 14,633
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIEEETEBE (2,628)
Profit before taxation BREE A& F 1,081,783
Taxation I8 (258,712)
Profit for the year F M A 823,071
Reportable segment assets AREHHEE 10,808,474 12,832,163 881,828 24,522,465
Note: Wit

All of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and are
substantially from sale of goods which are recognised at a point in

time.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

. ApsEw .
22. Revenue and Segment Information coninueo 22. W ko HER @)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets (b) AIRE T HEENL IR

Assets BE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 27,260,157 24,522 465

Intangible assets mpEE 354,650 356,037

Interests in associates REEE QA R 723,506 676,423

Interest in a joint venture REaEhENER - 7,873

Deferred tax assets RIER B & = 146,129 166,050

Other receivables and prepayments E b B U SR IB K TR OB 1,782,656 806,617

Other financial assets EemEE 1,428,109 4,402,211

Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH 3,325,140 3,828,930

Consolidated total assets RABEE 35,020,347 34,766,606
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

(©)

Geographical information

The Group’s three business segments operate principally in
North Asia and South East Asia.

22. WKk pEEXR )

(c)

i & & ¥

AEBE=EE®

TERIED

2023 2022
:-g: = —_=__

HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FHET

Revenue Uk &
North Asia b 56,271,520 60,089,079
South East Asia =] 17,619,776 17,234,915
Total segment revenue 2B = AR 73,891,296 77,323,994

Revenue is allocated based on the region in which the customer

WaERBEEPMEL DR -

is located.
2023 2022
—E-=5F —ETq-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Assets &=
North Asia ik s 22,236,931 19,752,918
South East Asia REE 5,023,226 4,769,547
Reportable segment assets AISRE DI EE 27,260,157 24,522,465

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the

BEDHMEERBEEMAEL
[

D o

assets are located.
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23.

24,

Other Gains, Net

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

23. HAurWR A FEE

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income FEWA 29,256 20,172
Government grant T8 187 904
Fair value changes of other financial assets EthemEEZAFEE (17,941) (10,120)
Others il (2,278) 4,357
9,224 15,313
Operating Profit 24, &5 R
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: CERFTEME/(FA)ATEE
#®EW:
2023 2022
—E=-= —ET=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories FEAR 70,505,900 73,693,147
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BEIXNA (BRESHE)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare *%?A BRI 924,765 919,972
— Provident fund contributions —RESHER 172,022 158,423
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B R @)ﬂ%
- audit fees —BRER 7,425 7,158
— non-audit fees —FEZER 1,455 1,695
Depreciation of property, M BERRETE (Hits)
plant and equipment (note 5) 114,130 138,110
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) | EESY (Hit6) 3,919 4,112
Net (decrease)/increase in provision for inventories 17 & ## (R4 ) /18 hn% 58 (33,598) 1,403
Net increase in loss allowance for trade and B 5 R H A EW I BIERE
other receivables EEE 17,926 89,037
EHexpRERas -3 199



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

25. Finance Costs 25. BB ER
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest expense on: TYgE2zFMEMAY
— Unsecured bank borrowings —mIERIRITIEE 337,212 255,619
— Secured mortgage loan —BERLRBBER 39 99
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 2,803 2,772
340,054 258,490
26. Taxation 26. Bi1E
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RiGEEEaRNBRIBEBESER:
profit or loss represents:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current taxation NEARR IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEMEH 4,380 3,436
— Taxation outside Hong Kong —BBRINRIA 221,887 257,093
(Oven)/under-provision of taxation BAFEBRARINGIA
outside Hong Kong in prior years (MBS BB R (2,155) 665
Deferred taxation (Note 19) RIEFLIE (H72519) 16,058 (2,482)
240,170 258,712
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% EEMNEBREREZE_Z_=46+_A8
(2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year ended =+ - BLEFEZMEF BRTE A
31 December 2023. ME16.5% (Z T4 :16.5% )&t

R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE - - =F+-_A=+—HIEFE

26. Taxation (continued)

Taxation outside Hong Kong has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

26. BLIE ()

EBBE IR BEE NG ERBOEF
AAEBERE TEBEEHERERR
BB ZBEHE

ERRAMURPEZIIELER -
ZZNF-A-BRERIMZE MM E
EZREDIRME%ZTERM

AEBEBRBRAEN 2 HBEEREL
MEREEZERSBIERZNT

2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation 5 B¢ A A 1,162,203 1,081,783
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%TH 191,763 178,719
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRABBENEERE TR E 2
jurisdictions za 3,335 27,145
Income not subject to taxation BAERB WA (27,764) (17,747)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ~ BLEL TS 5 TSR 2 52 49,805 43,653
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BERR) BETR (2,155) 665
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised &zt R ERFHIEE B2
M8 21,215 25,196
Tax effect of withholding tax on profits of TERHREK B ATEFZ
the subsidiaries B 3,971 1,081
Taxation charge R\ 240,170 258,712
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZ - T -=F+-A=+—HItFE

27. Dividends 27. BB
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FRAEEZENZERAD T
Company attributable to the year EaiEEARE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FHET
Final dividend proposed after the end of A 3R 4 HA R 18 R R HARR 8
the reporting period of HK25.7 cents TR @AR25. 781U
(2022: HK17 cents) per ordinary share (ZZEZZF 78 369,000 247,000
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period RBEBRERRRBKRE L E
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting REEHRERAEBE
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) £E—BMEFEEREALR
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FAMAERIKS 2 BN
approved and paid during the year EARERFEARE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —ET-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FHET
Final dividend in respect of the previous h_E— BB FERF AHLE K&
financial year, approved and paid AT 2 REARR B8 AR L AR
during the year of HK17 cents 17BN (=25
(2022: HK27 cents) per ordinary share 277%841) 246,656 392,896
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

28. Earnings Per Share

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$922,033,000 (2022: HK$823,071,000) and the weighted average
of 1,405,008,000 shares (2022: 1,415,316,000 shares) in issue.

28. BIRE R

BN

FAGRERBFIEZARGEEZFEA
JIE 16 3% #1922,083,000/8 £ (=& = —
#:823,071,0008 L) R E BT B
Z hnHE F 19 811,405,008,0008% (=&
— —%:1,415,316,0008% ) 5t & o

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—RA—BZBEETEER
(thousands) (FR% 1,450,918 1,455,172
Effect of share repurchased (thousands) BERO2FE (TR) (3,546) (1,583)
Effect of deferred shares (thousands) BEER D 2 & (TR) (42,364) (38,273)
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesas R+ - A=+—HZ L@
at 31 December (thousands) nEFE (FiR) 1,405,008 1,415,316
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREARZF (FRRB) 65.62 58.15

Diluted

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$922,033,000 (2022: HK$823,071,000) and the weighted average
number of shares of 1,405,008,000 (2022: 1,415,316,000 shares),
calculated as follows:

g

FRNBREBEERANEZEAQAEZEH
A JE 1 % F1922,033,0008 7L (= &
— T4 :823,071,00008 ) BB H 2
hn#E F 159 811,405,008,0000% ( = =
— T4 :1,415,316,0008 ) st E M

2023 2022
—=E=-= —E-=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RtZA=+—BzE@Rk
as at 31 December (thousands) EFEHE (TR 1,405,008 1,415,316
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ZA=+—8 (&%)
(diluted) as at 31 December (thousands) L@ N9 (TR 1,405,008 1,415,316
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) ~ BR#EERF| (FRE) 65.62 58.15
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. EEREAREEENS

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments
EEME

RERACNXEBNARBESFTZ
BMemmmT:

(@) Directors’ emoluments (a)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

204 vsTECS Holdings Limited

2023 2022

—EBED=H —E-_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Fees (2ka 805 1,091
Other emoluments Eiie

— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EXFHFEREREREL 10,583 10,586

— Discretionary bonus — BB TEAL 9,458 10,225

- Contributions to pension scheme — R SR 241 235

21,087 22,137

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2023 is set out below:

REEHE-_T_=%1+=-A
—t+—HLEFEZBEeHEIOT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
HEEXHER EBRE
BEpg wne FEERE BETEA BEIEEA k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FTER FTER FTER FTiER
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin FiE - 5,460 4,540 18 10,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TE 139 2,629 932 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau R - 910 1,590 18 2,518
Gu Sanjun BZE - 804 1,976 169 2,949
Li Yue ES2] - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Directors FMTES
Zhang Dongjie REN 114 - - - 114
Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah SR F 144 - - - 144
Independent Non-executive Directors BUERTES
Lam Hin Chi ERg 120 - - - 120
Li Wei FiE 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong TR 120 - - - 120
LiYi =5 48 - - - 48
805 10,583 9,458 241 21,087
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE - - =F+-_A=+—HIEFE

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments continueq)

@

Directors’ emoluments (continueq)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out below:

2. EERSHREEEMNE
(&)
(a) ESBME (@)

REEHE-_T-_—_+=A
—t+—BHLEFEZBMEeHEIOT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXFHE R BiRE
BEME e B EER BB TEAL BE E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FiET FET FiET
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin E - 5,460 5,540 18 11,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 131 2,592 977 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau RN - 910 1,790 18 2,718
Gu Sanjun B=E - 844 1,498 163 2,505
Li Yue 322 - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Directors FMTES
Xia Bin BEE 120 - - - 120
Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah 3R K Fl 360 - - - 360
Independent Non-executive Directors BUERTES
Lam Hin Chi BBy 120 - - - 120
Li Wei iz 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong TR 120 - - - 120
LiYi x5 120 - - - 120
1,091 10,586 10,225 235 22,137

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$408,000 (2022: HK$480,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the current and prior
years.

During the current and the prior year, no Director of the
Company waived any emoluments.

EXBBRZESFHEREXHM
T8 3E 1T E F 2 4408,000
AT (=T = Z%:480,000%
JT)

REMEBEFERERNESTX
NEAME FEFARIIBEMA
AEBXBREMAREER 2 2
Bk fE R BERB A (E -

REMLBEFE ARAESF
I B E W EE A B & o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments continueq)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year included two (2022: two) Directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2022: three)

2. EEREAREEENS

(%)

(b)

EE&eFHAL

AEBEFAAEZHEESALE
EREBE(ZEZZ_F - WMHB)E
EHEZHMEERLEXENZ
AMEARB-FAZIFTEH=

individuals during the year are as follows: B(ZEZZ ZZ)ANT 2B
mE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Fees e - -
Basic salaries and allowances EARFH KIER 8,750 8,966
Discretionary bonuses BISTEAL 7,062 8,064
Contributions to pension schemes RIREFTEIH R 612 546
16,424 17,576
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e &AmT -

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band B < 25 & 2023 2022
—&:== —E- =
HK$4,000,001 —HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017%8 75— 4,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$4,500,001 —HK$5,000,000 4,500,00178 75— 5,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 —HK$5,500,000 5,000,0017 75— 5,500,000/ JT 1 1

HK$6,000,001 —HK$6,500,000
HK$7,500,001 —HK$8,000,000

6,000,001 JT- 6,500,000/ 7T
7,500,0017% 7T— 8,000,000/ 7T

Y
|
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE " T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  30. &R & B EREHR KR T

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash *m—n gl Eﬁi ,,% = M5

(a) BR# AT
E —r

generated from operations TFRBEZE
2023 2022
—E-=F ZT=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E FHT FHET
Profit before taxation 5 552 A A 1,162,203 1,081,783
Interest income FBULA 23 (29,256) (20,172)
Interest expense B 25 340,054 258,490
Depreciation of property, YE - BERZBINE
plant and equipment 24 114,130 138,110
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A E 24 3,919 4,112
Share of associates’ profits DAREEE QR F (75,028) (14,633)
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIEEECEESE 7,918 2,628
Fair value loss on other financial assets HEemEE 2 ATE
&1 23 17,941 10,120
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEMEREZ
plant and equipment 18 169 51
Operating profit before working EEESEBHA L
capital changes 4582 5 | 1,542,050 1,460,489
Changes in working capital HEEED
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 & H th FE UK IB LA &2
receivables and deferred expenses REF T (), R (2,343,813) 1,966,144
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,236,390) (735,448)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 R H At BT RIA &
payables and contract liabilities aRa’EEm Chd) 2,930,035 (2,393,466)
Net cash generated from operations CEFTBIRE T 58 891,882 297,719
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HE - -_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

(b)

208 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Reconciliation of (assets)/liabilities arising from

30. MEBRERERKRME

(&)
(b) ﬁﬁ’“iﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?i(

financing activities E) /BEzYH
Other financial Other financial
Lease liabilities Borrowings assets liabilities Total
HEaE (EL- HiteBEE Hiuemas @it
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 17) (Note 18]
(Hi#20) (Hiie1) (H) (Hiit18)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign ThET Fign TiEn FiEn
At 1 January 2022 WZZ--%-F-A 249,532 6,278,318 (254,479) 321,173 6,594,544
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BHEBERES
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERAETE - 23,176,179 - - 23,176,179
Repayment of borrowings {8 fﬁ% - (21,028,510) - - (21,028,510)
(Pledging of assets foryproceeds from ~ BEAEHR (BHAHEE)/
secured obligations FE3E - - (6,339,218) 6,591,565 252,347
Capital element of lease rentals paid BNRERSHELHH (131,152) - - - (131,152)
Interest paid BRFIS (2772 (255,718) - - (258,490)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BER & HEZEEE (133,924) 1,891,951 (6,339,218) 6,591,565 2,010,374
Other changes: i@
Increase in lease liabilties from entering ~ RNENT U ERRHHE
into renewal or new leases mENNEEEE
during the year 193,701 - - - 193,701
Interest expense FERZ 2772 255,718 - - 258,490
Derecognition RIFER (68,677) - - - (68,677)
Set-off of pledged assets against LA BEREEESE
secured obligations BERER - - 3,225,503 (3,225,503) -
Exchange adjustments ERE% (18,156) (3:304) 15,601 16,779 (11,010)
Total other changes Eth e 109,640 252,414 3,241,194 (3.242,282) 360,966
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+-A=1+-H 225,248 8,422,683 (3,352,508) 3,670,456 8,965,884
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%-f-H 225,248 8,422,683 (3,352,503) 3,670,456 8,965,884
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ REREFESH:
Proceeds from new bank loans MEBTERHGIE - 24,020,079 - - 24,020,079
Repayment of borrowings BERE - (24,368,329) - - (24,368,329)
(Pledging of assets for/proceeds from  BIEIEEK (BEELE)/
secured obligations FE3E - - (5,276,940) 5,013,174 (263,766)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EREERENASES (110,602) - - - (110,602)
Interest paid EfFE (2,803) (337,251) - - (340,054)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ R&BLHEEEEE (113,405) (685,501) (5,276,940) 5,013,174 (1,062,672)
Other changes: Hiv#g:
Increase in lease liabilties fom entering N ENT L ERAFHHE
into renewal or new leases MENNREER
during the year 246,049 - - - 246,049
Interest expense FERx 2,803 337,251 - - 340,054
Derecognition RIERR (22,491) - - - (22,491)
Set-off of pledged assets against NBERAEEH
secured obligations BHRAER - - 7,948,112 (7,948,112) -
Exchange adjustments Rl 185 29,543 62,785 (79,705) 12,808
Total other changes HEp2ees 226,546 366,794 8,010,897 (8,027,817 576,420
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZR=1-H 338,389 8,103,976 (618,546) 655,813 8,479,632
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32.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE —ZE-=F+-A=+—HILFE

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had commitments to make
capital contributions of HK$25,308,000 (2022: HK$20,928,000) to
certain investments.

Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li”),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$220,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2022: HK$220,000).

(b) Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li,
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2022: HK$15,000).

(c) License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co.,
a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co. (2022: HK$14,000).

(d) Guarantee to an associate

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has given guarantee
to financial institution in respect of loan facility entered by an
associate to the extent of HK$147,319,000.

(e) Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 29)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$64,548,000
during the year (2022: HK$71,570,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 2= — & —
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33. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

As at 31 December 2023

33. XA 2 M BEARR T
R-ZE-=%+=ZA=+-—H

2023 2022
—R-=5F —F-=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R RE 972 116
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR 2 RE 7 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,116,133 2,115,277
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JiE W Bt B8 2 Bl RUIR 1,305,670 1,192,270
Prepayments TR FIE 124 264
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEED 12,834 23,855
1,318,628 1,216,389
Total assets s E 3,434,761 3,331,666
EQUITY =
Share capital N 14 143,689 145,092
Reserves 1 16 344,057 295,726
Total equity MR 487,746 440,818
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary & —REIF 8 A F k08 2,946,815 2,890,698
Other payable H b e 5RIB 200 150
Total liabilities wnas 2,947,015 2,890,848
Total equity and liabilities EZNEERE 3,434,761 3,331,666
Net current liabilities RBEEFH 1,628,387 1,674,459
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBER 487,746 440,818
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on EEgR_T-_NEF=-A=-+—8i#t
21 March 2024, HE R BERE B o

Li Jialin
EM
Director

BF
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Ong Wei Hiam, William
FEM
Director

BFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 20283 HHE - - =F+-_A=+—HILtFE

34. Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements. Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current
(2020 amendments’”)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial staterents: Non-current liabilities
with covenants (2022 amendments”)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases:
Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of
cash flows and HKFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Supplier finance arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates:
Lack of exchangeability

beginning on or after

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2025

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M %8R

AERBEAENRFE s EENREER
EEBERSIMT -

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out below:

Ty

Results i

Years ended 31 December

HE+-A=t-BLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-=E —E-C R —F —ZE-EF —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET AT AL AL
Revenue Iz 73,891,296 77,323,994 78,335,446 69,961,881 66,209,921
Profit before taxation BRER A A 1,162,203 1,081,783 1,555,136 1,247,265 1,009,507
Taxation A (240,170) (258,712) (241,110) (179,685) (199,559)
Profit for the year FREF 922,033 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580 809,948
Attributable to: YN
Equity Shareholders of AREERFBEA
the Company 922,033 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580 809,948
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
W+ZA=1+-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“E-ZH g3 —2--% —Z-%HF —Z-nEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TET FTET THT THT
Total assets MEE 35,020,347 34,766,606 32,176,432 29,425,571 24,936,069
Total liabilities MEE (26,797,511) (27,108,828) (24,265,002) (22,599,285) (19,281,597)
Total equity AR 8,222,836 7,657,778 7,911,430 6,826,286 5,664,472

212 VSTECS Holdings Limited
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